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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TTHARRRERERE R m Mo

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board"), | hereby present the
results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a turnover in the amount of
approximately HKS37,261,000 (2013: HKS$36,687,000), representing
an increase of 1.6% as compared to the last year. The Group's
turnover was solely derived from the sales of food and beverages
business segment, and the Group's exploration and production
segment did not generate any revenue during the year.

During the year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company in the amount of approximately HK$36,654,000, as
compared to a loss of approximately HKS44,219,000 during the last
year. Loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company was
0.42 HK cents (2013: 0.56 HK cents).

Business Review

Exploration and Production Segment

The Group has successfully completed the acquisition (the
‘Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Totalbuild Investments Group”) in 2011 which
has entered into petroleum contract with China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") for the drilling, exploration, exploitation and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the specified site located
in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin, Xinjiang, PRC (the “Petroleum
Contract”). The term of the Petroleum Contract is for a term of 30
years commencing 1 June 2009.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THASREEEIEE N wm AT

Under the Petroleum Contract, the Group shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign its
competent experts to perform exploration, development, and
production of natural gas and/or oil within the site. Under the
Petroleum Contract, in the event that any oil field and/or gas field is
discovered within the site, the development costs shall be borne by
CNPC and the Group in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The managements have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies.

The development period of any oil/gas field will start from the date of
the completion of the Overall Development Program (“ODP"). ODP is
a document that is required to be approved by the relevant
government authorities before the development can commence.
ODP comprises a formal development engineering plan, backed up
by survey results and relevant studies, together with a full economic
analysis and time schedule of the development operations. However,
there was delay in finalising the ODP documentation and the
preparation of formal reserve report. The production period should
start immediately after obtaining relevant government approval on
ODP.

During the year, the Group has been carrying out pilot productions
with CNPC at the site. 202,670,000 (2013: 314,830,000) cubic meters
of gas was being extracted. The information obtained from research
and pilot production will form part of the information to be applied in
the ODP. The gas so produced during the pilot-productions has been
sold to the local customers by CNPC near the site area.
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Chief Executive Ofﬂcer’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TR RS EEIEE S wm Mo

As at 31 December 2014, the acquired oil/gas field has approximately
estimated contingent resources of 47.4 (2013: 47.4) thousand
barrels (“Mbbl") of oil and 11,703 (2013: 11,802) million cubic metres
("MMm?") of natural gas (based on Group's 49% net entitlement
interests in Petroleum contract). These contingent resources are
quantities of oil and gas estimated, to be potentially recoverable from
known accumulations by application of development projects, but
which are not currently considered to be commercially recoverable
due to one or more contingencies. The risks associated with these
contingent resources included, (i) no definitive Gas Sales Agreement
nor accurate information on likely future sales prices; (ii) the future
ODP is still to be developed and approved; and (iii) the field is situated
in a remote location.

We anticipate the negotiation of the Gas Sales Agreement (“GSA")
with CNPC will complete in the year 2015 or early 2016. The GSA
with CNPC covers a number of provisions, such as terms of the GSA,
quantity of volume commitments, gas quality, price terms, delivery
obligations and delivery point etc. The major point is that the Group
has yet to agree with CNPC on pricing terms. The natural gas pricing
reform closed the price gap between imported and local gas prices.
The reformed pricing mechanism on natural gas is a major reference
point for the Group to negotiate the pricing terms with CNPC. Based
on the current information available, we expected that the GSA could
be finalised in the year 2015 or early 2016. The Group will then
accelerate the exploration, development and pilot-production of oil/
gas in the field so that the overall financial performance of the Group
will be significantly improved, as well as its operating cash position.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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A preliminary natural gas sharing proposal is discussed and agreed
by the joint management committee which comprises
representatives from CNPC and the Group at 18 February 2014 (the
‘Proposal’). Based on the Proposal, the Group will receive the
proposed distribution of natural gas from pilot-production which was
delivered and sold before 1 January 2074. The 2nd natural gas
sharing proposal is discussed and agreed by the joint management
committee at 3 March 2015 (the "2nd Proposal”) which cover the
natural gas from pilot-production which was delivered and sold
during the year ended 31 December 2014. We expected the proposed
distribution from the above proposals will be received during year
2015 and 2016. However, the unit price in the proposals is only a
preliminary unit price used for this preliminary sharing, the final unit
price is still subject to change and would only be confirmed after the
formal GSA signed.

During the year, the exploration and production segment did not
recognise any revenue and the Group is still negotiating with CNPC
regarding the price term. The segment loss before income tax was
approximately HK$12,604,000 (2013: HKS$19,696,000). No
development and production activity was carried out under the
Petroleum Contract, the pilot-production is not regarded as
production activities as the Petroleum Contract is still in its
exploration stage and ODP is yet to approve. The results of
operations in exploration and production segment and costs incurred
for exploration and evaluation assets acquisition and exploration
activities are shown as below:

(a)  Results of operations in exploration and production segment
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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(b)  Costs incurred for exploration and evaluation assets acquisitions
and exploration activities

(b) REBERAEGEERBERDFZBIELZ
22N

2014 2013

—E-EF —E—=F

HKS$'000 HKS'000

FHET FHET

Exploration cost incurred during the year 4 RE 4 7 BERK 2 15,023 98,584

Information on oil/gas field and gross contingent
resources

Under the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6 years
commencing from 1 June 2009. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
has 5 exploration wells. During the year, the major exploration
activities included analysis of seismic data in previous years and
certain pilot-productions were being carried out. During the year, the
related exploration costs of approximately HK$15,023,000 were
recognised in the cost of exploration and evaluation assets and
202,670,000 cubic meters natural gas was extracted through the
pilot-production. No development and production activity was carried
out under the Petroleum Contract, the pilot-production is not
regarded as production activities as the Petroleum Contract is still in
its exploration stage and ODP is yet to approve.

The reserve evaluation was conducted in accordance with Petroleum
Resources Management system, an internationally recognised
reserve standards and guideline, the details of information were set
out in the Appendix V of Competent Person's Report to the
Company's circular dated 3 December 2010. There are no any
material change of assumption as compared with previous disclosed
in the Competent Person’s Report.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THASREEEIEE N wm AT

The following table summarised the estimates of Group's 49% net
entitlement interests of the gross contingent resources in the
Petroleum Contract:

TERBARHENPAREERBEEREEN
49% F T HEE R M ST BF -

Qil Natural gas
ap:: RAR
(Mbbl) (MMm?)
() (B&8MX7XK)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZ-ZT—=F+_A=+—HXK
—FT-mF—-H—H 47.4 11,802
Pilot-production activity during the year FRZHAETE - (99)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—WHFE+=ZA=+—H 47.4 11,703
Sales of Food and Beverages Business Segment HERMRURBIEL DI

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a turnover
from the sales of food and beverages business in the amount of
approximately HK$37,261,000 (2013: HK$36,687,000), representing
an increase of 1.6% as compared to the last year. The segmental
gain before income tax was approximately HK$547,000, as
compared to the segmental loss before income tax in the amount of
approximately HK$306,000 in 2013. The sales of food and beverages
business was adversely affected by the persistent increase in raw
materials and labour costs. Therefore, the management has taken a
cautious approach to manage the operations of this segment. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group imposed tight costs
control to the operations, with a view to minimising costs to cope
with the changing business environment. The Group has also tried to
change the customer and product mix with a view to increasing
diversity of this business segment. The Group will continue to keep
track of the economic environment and review the future allocation
of resources as and when required.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no outstanding interest
bearing borrowings (2013: Nil). The cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately HK$370,735,000 (2013: HKS317,452,000).
The Group's current ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was
approximately 0.7 (2013: 0.8). The ratio of total liabilities to total
assets of the Group was approximately 15.6% (2013: 17.1%).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has outstanding convertible
notes in the principal amount of HKS$1,958,670,000. Such notes are
to due in 2041, do not carry any interest but carry a right to convert
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of
HKS$0.168 per share (subject to adjustment mechanisms set out in
the terms of the convertible bonds). A maximum number of
11,658,750,000 shares are fall to be allotted and issued by the
Company, assuming the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the outstanding convertible notes in full. During the year, no
convertible note was converted to ordinary shares of the Company.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THASREEEIEE N wm AT

Subscription for 1,584,224,000 new shares by Harvest Fund
Management Co., Ltd. under general mandate (the “Subscription”)
On 23 June 20174, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. ("Harvest
Fund”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to allot and issue
1,584,224,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.05 each in the share capital
of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) under general mandate
at the Subscription Price of HK$0.101 (the “Subscription Price") per
subscription share. The aggregate nominal value of the Subscription
Shares is HKS$79,211,200. The Subscription Price represented a
discount of approximately 9.01% to the closing price of HKS0.111
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
subscription agreement. The gross proceeds and net proceeds from
the subscription amount to approximately HK$S160 million and
HKS$159 million, respectively. The net price of each Subscription
Share amounted to approximately HKS$0.100. The Company intended
to apply the net proceeds from the Subscription for general working
capital of the Group. The completion of the Subscription took place
on 18 July 2014 and the details of the Subscription were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 23 June 2014 and 18 July
2014 respectively.

Charges of Assets
None of the assets of the Group were pledged as security for any
banking facilities and borrowings as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK
dollar and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and
market trends have always been an area of concern of the Group. It
is a policy of the Group to have its entities operate in their
corresponding local currencies to minimise currency risks. The
Group, after considering its exchange rate exposure for the period
under review, did not enter into any exchange rate derivative or hedge
contracts during the year. However, the management will continue to
monitor foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure if and when necessary.

Capital Commitments
The Group had capital commitments of approximately
HKS$148,436,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$167,291,000).

Litigation

(@ In January 2014, two independent parties (the “Plaintiffs”)
commenced a legal action against (a) two substantial
shareholders of the Company (the "First and Second
Defendants”) and (b) the Company, whereby the Plaintiffs
alleged that the First and Second Defendants have agreed to
transfer convertible notes of the Company in the principal sum
of HK$106,820,000 (“Disputed CN") to the Plaintiffs, but the
Company failed to recognise the transfer and failed to issue
shares in accordance with the Plaintiffs’ conversion instruction.
The Plaintiffs sought for total damages of HK$106,820,000
and interests and related costs.

The Company filed defense on 12 March 2014 and denied the
claims made by the Plaintiffs. The management of the
Company made an assessment that the litigation is unlikely to
result in any material impact on the financial position of the
Company.

12  cChina Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THASREEEIEE N wm AT

(b)  On 16 June 2014, the Company received a writ of summons in (b) MZZE—NEXNATRB  NAREEES
the High Court of Hong Kong relating to the termination of aBEER 2GR RBREER =T —H
placing agreement on 21 May 2074 with United Simsen FEAZ+—BARERXTHBHEESFARAD
Securities Limited (“United Simsen”). United Simsen as the AITRITHE DI L2 RE M - RITH
plaintiff claimed against the Company for (a) the sum of SERRERARE B R@QE &
HKS$3,010,025.60; (b) reimbursement of costs and expenses; 3,010,025.607%8 7T : (b)AEKAKRER &
and c¢) indemnity against all claims, damages, costs and (o) RERB ARz 2ERE - BK - 5K
expenses from the placees, together with interest and costs. ARER  ERMNE LKA - &2 EHE
Details about the termination of the placing agreement were ZHABERALRFRMAA-ZE—NFRHA
already disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 21 ZH—RAZAMERE c NAREAEKIT
May 2014. The Company has settled the dispute with United e B AR AR I A RITE & N MRS -
Simsen on this action and paid United Simsen a settlement At - ZFARZE—EHF+AZ+—AMN
sum. Consequently, on 21 October 2014, this action was RELMmE -
dismissed by way of consent order.

(c)  0On 11 July 2014, the Company received a writ of summons in (c) RZZE—WEFLA+—H AAREEEE

the High Court of Hong Kong relating to the termination of
open offer and underwriting agreement on 23 June 2014 with
United Simsen. United Simsen claimed against the Company
for (a) the sum of HK$8,850,496.07; (b) reimbursement for all
reasonable legal fees, documentation fees and other
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in respect of the open offer
under the underwriting agreement; and (c) indemnity against all
claims, damages, costs and expenses from the sub-
underwriters under the underwriting agreement, together with
interest and costs. Details about the termination of the open
offer and the underwriting agreement were already disclosed in
the Company’'s announcement dated on 23 June 2014. The
Company has settled the dispute with United Simsen on this
action and paid United Simsen a settlement sum.
Consequently, on 21 October 2014, this action was dismissed
by way of consent order.

BEER BRI  ARFENR_F—N
FRAZT=ZBRIERFEEE REXITHE
RN 2 Bt - RTTHAAAARHR(a)
& $£8,850,496.07 % 7T : (b) ¥ E R 15 B 4
BHRETAHEERBZEMARERE
B XHEBERAREMSEEREHMS &
CREIERAREEHGHRREL S
R BX KARER  BRMBRKA -
RIEAFABRERBHEHZ ZFBERAAR
FA-Z—MFERA-+t=B 2 MHH
B o ARRICAREXTTH A MR
ERITHEA MRS « Eit - ZHFAR =
E-NETA-+T—RURESM -

FREE
Bk E AR Ao R E—FER T —=F
TZA=t+—RB FAEEITEEMEAXAEE -

Contingent Liabilities
Save as the litigation disclosed above, the Group had no other
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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Employee Information

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total workforce of 30
(2013: 40). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
work performance, working experiences, professional qualifications
and the prevailing market practice.

Prospects

Natural Resource Industries

The Group has been seeking investment opportunities from time to
time to broaden the Group's sources of income. The success of the
Acquisition of the Totalbuild Investments Group in 2011 enables the
Group to diversify its business into natural resources business.
Although the delay in the production plan of oil/gas in Xinjiang will
delay the return for the capital investment in oil and gas business,
the management of the Group maintains its long term confidence on
the natural gas and oil industries and the Acquisition will broaden the
revenue stream of the Group in the future.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will
evaluate the value and performance of this segment from time to
time, and continue to keep track of the economic environment and
review the future allocation of resources as and when required.

Appreciation

Looking forward, we will continue our proven strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholder. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to a team of
devoted staff for their outstanding service and to our shareholders
for your continued support.

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang, aged 57, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 2009 and was elected as the chief executive
officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his study for
Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has near 33 years of working
experience in exploration and exploitation of Petroleum industry. He
acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Qilfield Company (the
“Shengli Oilfield") and awarded the Top-notch talent from China
Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Qilfield.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, aged 48, joined the Group in February 2004
and promoted to executive director and chief financial officer in
October 2005 and resigned as chief financial officer on 1 May 2011.
He has over 18 years’ experiences in accounting and auditing fields
including over 13 years’ accounting and auditing experience in other
public listed companies prior to joining the Group in February 2004,
Mr. Chui is also an executive director of Hong Kong Life Sciences
and Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085) and an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148), both of which are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange’), and a non-executive director of Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1246), which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Gu Qun Rong, aged 50, joined the Company as a non-executive
director in September 2014. He obtained a bachelor degree and a
post-doctoral degree in mineral processing from Nanjing University
in 1987 and 1996, respectively, and a doctorate degree in mineral
processing from China University of Mining & Technology, Beijing in
1993. He is an expert in chemistry, energy, biodiesel and oil and gas.
Between 1996 and now, he held the positions of Associate Professor,
Professor and Vice Dean for Scientific Research in Nanjing University,
and had been a Visiting Scholar in Wayne State University, United
States and University of Regina, Canada and a Senior Research
Fellow in University of Alberta, Canada. He had worked with leading
oilfields in China such as Daqing Qilfield, Shengli Qilfield and Dagang
Oilfield, and been the Chief Scientist of energy companies in North
America.

ERECERF

HWEREE  BESTH - R-ZEZNFETZAMN
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Biographical Details of Directors
EEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 45, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in July 2010. He holds a bachelor
degree in science with major in accounting of Bemidji State
University, USA and is a member of both American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing
and accounting field. Mr. Fu is an independent non-executive director
of Dejin Resources Group Company Limited (stock code: 1163) and
China New Energy Power Group Limited (stock code: 1041) which
are both listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange.

Mr. Sun Xiaoli, aged 59, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director in July 2011. He is a lawyer in the PRC. He holds a
master degree in law from China University of Political Science and
Law and a bachelor degree in law from East China University of
Political Science and Law (formerly known as “East China College of
Political Science and Law"). From 1983 to 1985, Mr. Sun acted as the
teacher in Fujian Provincial Public Security College. From 1988 to
1995, he has acted as the research associate in Institute of the
Ministry of Justice. From 1996 to January 1997, he has acted as the
associate professor in the Faculty of Law in the China University of
Political Science and Law. Mr. Sun has been the lawyer in the
Navigator Law Office since 1997. He has extensive experience in
teaching and dealing with the laws’ affairs in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Yongguang, aged 58, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2012. He graduated
from the Shengli Oilfield Staff University specializing in Petroleum
Geology. He has more than 31 years of work experience in petroleum
industry. He acted as Shengli Oilfield Dongxin Oil Production Plant
operating brigade deputy commander, the chief of technical
supervision and the officer of technical quality and safety supervision

center.
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Corporate Governance Report

Overview

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance

standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of

and benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe

that improvement in corporate governance not only assists the

Company in effective supervision and control on its business

operation, but also attracts investment from international

institutional investors, thereby creating and enhancing shareholder

value.

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the Corporate Governance

Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in

Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

1.  Corporate Governance Practices

(@)

With respect to the compliance with paragraph A of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

The Company had held 10 Board meetings in the year of
2014. Directors have been consulted to advice the
agenda of the Board meeting. The Board has determined
all material matter by physical board meeting with real-
time conferencing facilities and sufficient notice of the
Board meeting has been given to the directors. Minutes
of the Board and the Board committees are recorded in
sufficient details and kept by the company secretary for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any director. Directors were supplied with adequate
information in a timely manner and taken independent
professional advice at the Company's expenses to enable
them forming decision in the relevant meetings. The
Company has arranged for insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the directors. The composition of the
Board is shown on page 39 of this Annual Report. A
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or

as an addition shall hold office until the next general
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meeting. Every director is aware that he/she should give
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Details of the directors’ attendance in different
meetings are set out on page 23. Agreed procedures are
in place providing to the member of the Board and/or
committee to seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses to assist them to discharge
their duties.

For other details of the responsibilities of directors, please
refer to the section “Board of directors”.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph B of the
CG Code, the Company has established a remuneration
committee with specific written terms of reference,
details of which are set out in pages 26 to 28 of this
Annual Report.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph C of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The
Company has announced the result of 2014 on 30 March
2015. A statement by the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities is included in Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 49 to 51 of this Annual Report. The
details of the internal controls of the Company and the
audit committee are set out under the section “Internal
Control and Internal Audit” below.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets
of the Company at all times. The system of internal
controls aims to help achieving the Group's business
objectives, safequarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information. However, the design of the system is to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.
Management has conducted regular reviews during the
year on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risks management as well as physical and information
systems security. The chief financial officer (the “CFQO")
has reported to the audit committee from time to time
during the year, in conjunction with key findings identified
by the external auditors, findings and actions or measures
taken in addressing those internal controls. The audit
committee in turn reports any material issues to the
Board. The Board, through the audit committee, also sets
targets for and reviews plan and progress on continuous
improvement work of the Company’s internal control
system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

TERERMSE
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With respect to the compliance with paragraph D of the
CG Code, the Company has carried out the following
corporate governance practices:

When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The
Company has set up three committees, for details please
refer to the relevant sections below.

With respect to the compliance with paragraph E of the
CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting ("AGM") to answer questions
raised up in the meeting. However, the chairman is
vacated. Other Directors will attend the AGM and will be
available to answer questions at the AGM. The
procedures for demanding a poll by the shareholders
were incorporated in every circular issued during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has

complied itself with all CG Code except for the following

deviations:

(f)

In relation to A.2.7 of the CG Code which states that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer ("CEQ")
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and CEO should be clearly established and
set out in writing. Since the position of chairman is
vacated, the Board is currently identifying the suitable
candidate to fill the vacancy and will ensure that the
chairman will be appointed as soon as possible. Up to the
date of this Annual Report, the chairman of the Board is
vacated and Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the CEO.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014
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In relation to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the AGM. However, the position of
chairman is currently vacated. Other Directors have
attended the AGM and were prepared to answer
guestions from shareholders at the AGM.

In relation to A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election while all directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. For the year under review, all non-executive
directors of the Company have not been appointed for a
specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

In relation to A.6.7 of the CG Code, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr.
Wang Yongguang, the independent non-executive
directors, were unable to attend the AGM of the Company
held on 25 June 2014 as they were out of town for other
businesses.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")

as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code

of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of

the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,

they have confirmed that they have complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code through the year.
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3. Board of directors

22

(a)

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
a total of six members including two executive directors,
one non-executive director and three independent non-
executive directors. Members of the Board have different
professional and relevant industry experiences and
background so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group's business.
During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Company has three independent non-executive
directors representing not less than one-third of the
Board, and one of them is a qualified accountant.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of their
independence to the Group. The Group considered that
all independent non-executive directors meets the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the
terms of the guidelines. The names of the directors and
their respective biographies are set out on pages 15to 16
of this Annual Report.
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The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group's strategies development and to
review the business operation. The Board also monitors
and controls financial performance in pursuit of the

©
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Group's strategic objectives. The names of the directors EHERAERzgHm L RENT
during the financial year and their individual attendance
of are set out below:
Attendance/number of meetings entitle to attend
HERY AREEZEZHE
Annual/
Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Name Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
RFEE
®H g ERZEEE §FHMZEEE 2 REZES BEIRE
Mr. Zhao Guogiang BRI A
(CEO) (7B 48%) 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERIREAE 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 1/
Mr. Huang Changbi BEELE
(resigned on (R=F—mEF
2 December 2014) +-AZBEHE) 9/9 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. Zhang Zhenming RIREALAE
(resigned on (N=Z—mF
24 November 2014) +—AZTMAFHE) 0/8 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. FuWing Kwok, Ewing B85 £ 10/10 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/
Mr. Sun Xiaoli RERAE 10/10 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/
Mr.Wang Yongguang  SEACEEAE 9/10 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1
Dr. Gu Quanrong BRREL
(appointed on (RZF—mF
3 September 2014) NA=ZREZE) 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A
The Board members have no financial, business, family (d) E=gREZEUWENE - X5 K

or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the

Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group's strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.
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(f)  The major issues which were brought before the Board l FREREEFGARBIIEZFTER
for their decisions during the year include: EE
() Proposals related to potential acquisition, () HBEEEBEEWE RENEMNE
investments, or any significant capital expenditures; RERFZ 23 &
and
(i)  Formulation of operational strategies and review of (i) HIFTREFREREREMEER
its financial performance and results and the I BB RN EPEEAERIE o

internal control system.

(g) The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the (9 EBFEIEBRECABRAARSER
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls 2Bz NEBEE - (REERER 2%
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the BERARREE °

Company's assets.

(h)  Three Board committees, namely, the audit committee, (hy BRU=ZE=E=ZEg HERZESR
the remuneration committee and the nomination g FWEZESRIERZES U
committee, have been established to oversee particular EREESTEHE I EH -

aspect of the Group's affairs.

() The Board also has delegated the day-to-day () =E=BGNEEERAEECZEEREERRE
management and operations of the Group's businesses REBECZAEXEBEREREE -EF
to management of the Group. Major corporate matters SREHRKEEERECFELES
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the HBE: REVBHRREETSNT
management include the preparation of financial BRIE  BTESERRMCEBE
statements for Board approval before publishing, BEEER - HITEE 2 RBEZELR
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted BEBEFGE  ARETHEEETE
by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of BE - RANRRG -

internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations.

() Inrelation to A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors have () WBELEEGTRIFEALLE FIEE
participated their own professional training by attending =RRLEHE RIEHEEB
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in EENEBBEEBEY  2mER
relation to the business on directors’ duties. SEEEIIER
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(k) The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. The Company recognizes
that the Board diversity is an essential element contributing to
the sustainable development of the Company. In designing the
Board's composition, the Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to the skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. All Board appointments are based
on merits and considered against a variety of objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(@) Up to the date of this Annual Report, the position of the
chairman of the Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang
was elected as the CEO on 29 December 2009.

(b) The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the CEO is also responsible for
ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.

(c) The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company's day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board's approval.
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6. Non-executive Directors

26

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

(@) The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company’'s website. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee include the following:

i to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

i.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability

of performance-based remuneration;
iii. toreview and approve performance-based

remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
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iv.  toreview and approve the compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their
office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company;

v.  toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

vi.  toensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok,
Ewing who act as chairman of the remuneration
committee, Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr. Wang Yongguang, all
of them are independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings held during was
set out in section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
on page 23 of this Annual Report. The remuneration
committee had reviewed and approved the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
was set up by the remuneration committee on the basis
of their merit, qualification and competence.

(b)

©

(d)
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(e) The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.
(f)  The Group's share option scheme as described on page
42 of this Annual Report is adopted as the Group's long-
term incentive scheme.
8.  Nomination of Directors

28

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’s website.

The primary functions of the nomination committee include the

following:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become the
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive, taking into
account the Company's corporate strategy and the mix of
skills, knowledge, diversity and experience in the future;
and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the members of
nomination committee comprised Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
who acts as chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Sun
Xiaoli and Mr. Wang Yongguang, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during the
year and record of individual attendance of members, on a
named basis, at meetings held during was set out in section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 23 of this
Annual Report. The nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, made
recommendations on the changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy and assessed the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
received HKS$921,000 in respect of audit service provided to the
Group. The auditors’ remuneration has been duly approved by
the audit committee and there was no disagreement between
the Board and the audit committee on the selection and
appointment of auditor.

Audit Committee

(@) The audit committee of the Company, was established
since 30 January 2002 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 as disclosed on the
Company's website, comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing
(chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Sun Xiaoli and Mr.
Wang Yongguang. Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing is certified
public accountants for many years. In the opinion of the
Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge
their duties.

10.
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The number of audit committee meetings held during the

year and record of individual attendance of members, on

a named basis, at meetings held was set out in section

headed “Corporate Governance Report" on page 23 of

this Annual Report.

The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess

matters related to the financial statements of accounts

and to provide recommendations and advices, including

but not limited to the followings:

to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations and ensure co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is
involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor
shall include any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit
firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The
Committee should report to the Board, identifying
any matters in respect of which it considers that
action or improvement needed and making
recommendations as to the steps to be taken;
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to monitor integrity of the Company's financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

c.  significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;

d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e.  compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h.  whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group's financial
statements and whether the disclosures give
a fair view of the Group's financial conditions;
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viil.

Yo el

#& =
any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

j. the cashflow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board;

in regard to (f) above:

a.  members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company's auditors; and

b. the Committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to
any matters that have been raised by the
Company's accountant, compliance officer or
auditors.

to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the system of
internal control and ensure the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system and to review the Company's
statement on internal control systems (where one
is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and management's response;
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(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group's interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;

to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management's response;

to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and

management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external
auditor's management letter;
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xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in (and as amended
from time to time) Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

and

xix. to consider other matters, as defined or assigned

by the Board from time to time.

(d) Inaddition to the above tasks regarding to the Company's
financial statement, the audit committee should also to
consider any other matters, as defined by the Board from
time to time; and to conduct interviews with any director,

manager, financial controller upon their resignation in

order to ascertain the reasons for his departure.

(e) The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system
of the Group to safeguard investments of the

shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

()  The Group's interim report for the year ended 30 June
2014 and annual report for the year ended 31 December

2014 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chun Kau has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since June 2014. Mr. Chan is a solicitor in Hong
Kong. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook over 15 hours of

professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders' meetings are contained in
the Company's articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all
circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on the business day following the
shareholders' meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, of the remuneration committee and of the
nomination committee, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, is available to answer questions at
the shareholders' meetings.

Pursuant to E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
shall attend the AGM of the Company. Due to the vacancy of
chairman of the Company, another director would chair the
AGM of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from E.1.2
of the CG Code.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders' meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors. During the year, there was no significant change in
the constitutional documents.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.
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13. Right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may be)
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures
as set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary
general meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at
general meeting of the Company by sending the same to the
Company at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

By the order of the Board

Zhao Guogiang

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015

36

China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014

13.

HE

HE
TTE

)

AMBRRSRIAE 2R
BRERBHIAGIHEFTSREETIRAR
RIBHBRA TS 2 — 2R - iREEGE
RAREBEAEEEXNARTWE (RIB
AME)REEHM2FZBRT2FADZ
E2BFTUNER - EHRZFRIIBAE LBE
B2 R HEFARE  AREMARFEZ
MR ERERART BB BL RO -

B RZAIR IR A B A2 A0 I T3 A R AR A5 5
REZHBERIEF - RRAIRARRPIRA
SLIREDH  ARBDRABARIARRZE
BEEMER -

BRAGREANESSREZEMNERAE
ERABEEARRF - RIRAT A HEER
ZERALABKBTEARBZE LT RE!
Ho B o

£gm

i
HMERNTTEF

Z®-RF=A=tA



The directors present herewith the Annual Report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries involves
sales of food and beverages in Hong Kong and exploration and
production of natural gas in PRC, the details of which are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 52.

The state of the Group’s and the Company's affairs as at 31
December 2014 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position on pages 53 to 54 and the Statement of Financial
Position on page 55, respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 140.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year, together
with reasons thereof, and of the Company’s share options, are set
out in note 28 and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 56 and note 30 to the consolidated financial statement
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the

Group's total

hAEEZAETIL
Sales Purchases
HE®H IR
The largest customer RAEP 26.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREF B 79.5%
The largest supplier SAHIER 26.4%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ERE AT 52.5%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEO)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Huang Changbi (resigned on 2 December 2014)
Mr. Zhang Zhenming (resigned on 24 November 2014)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Gu Quanrong (appointed on 3 September 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing

Mr. Sun Xiaoli

Mr. Wang Yongguang
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Zhao Guogiang, Dr. Gu Quanrong, and Mr. Wang Yongguang, will
retire at the upcoming AGM and be eligible for re-election.

Director’s Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 15 to 16 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2014, none of the directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

Report of the Directors
ESEEWE

RIBE-OF+-A=+—B ARFAEHFHE
ZITBABMERA AR REAMBEEE (EE
REFLBEGROIEXVED) 2kt - BB &
BB B AREESF N AEEMNEXVEBET
R8N MG ARNRR LRz #mtRR (B
RIBZEES LB GRIG SRR AREFRE
ZIESIORR) - INEHAAREE S KBRS
FEIB2EINARRBAFE 2 B LMz EamIOR
B HRBERETIRAMG A D E R T2

AR o
EEBAROAES 2ER

B T S AR B | — 0 R 2 B AR IS
72 B SR A I 2 B B P 4 2T ST 4

MZPFREARBAZESZANEBBEARMNKES
ERARRRETAEMARER 2 ZFER -

TEEREEERERAR /R 2014 4]



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 and the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission to deal
in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 26 June 2013, the Company has adopted the
Share Option Scheme to replace the expired share option scheme
adopted 28 January 2002 and as amended on 2 November 2006.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted, the Board of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company.

No share option was granted and exercised during the year under

review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.
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Substantial Shareholders’ interests and Short Position

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the

persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in

the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company
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Total number

Approximate

Numberof  of sharesand  percentage of
Number of underlying underlying issued share
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares shares shares capital
1HEE Bk (EERTRA
BRHEE LB ERtE R &R ROBE HERGEH Sl
Huge Pearl International Trustee 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 142.22%
Limited’ XEEA
Pure Light Enterprise Ltd.! Trustee 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 142.22%
ZFEA
UK. Prolific Petroleum Group  Interest of controlled 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 142.22%
Company Ltd corporation
XEGEE 2 R
Wang Hanning' Founder of discretionary 1,860,000,000 11,658,750,000 13,518,750,000 142.22%
TEE trust
FREEFTEIIA
Harvest Fund Management Investment manager 1,224,498,000 0 1,224,498,000 12.88%
Co., Ltd 2 RERE
SEESBEEERAA?
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd? Interest of controlled 1,224,498,000 0 1,224,498,000 12.88%
HHEEAREEAT? corporation
ZEHEE R
Wang Da Yong? Beneficial Owner 2,375,000,000 0  2375000,000 29.98%
TARE? EnEEA
Simsen International Beneficial Owner 617,749,690 0 617,749,690 7.80%
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Notes:

44

According to the Company's records, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited ("UK Prolific") owned (a) 1,860,000,000 shares of the
Company and (b) convertible notes (the “Convertible Note") in the
principal amount of HK$1,958,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any
interest with right to convert the Convertible Note into shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HKS0.168 per share. Based on the
conversion price of HKS0.168 per share, a maximum number of
11,658,750,000 shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Note in full. Therefore, the
Convertible Note give rise to an interest in 11,658,750,000 underlying
shares of the Company being owned by UK Prolific for the purpose of
filings under Disclosure of Interest (“DI") under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

Based on the DI filings made by the relevant shareholder(s) to the
Company, UK Prolific is wholly and beneficially owned by Pure Light
Enterprise Limited (“Pure Light"), which is in turn wholly and beneficially
owned by Huge Pearl International Limited (“Huge Pearl"), which in turn
is the trustee for Wang's Trust, a discretionary trust for which Mr. Wang
Hanning is the founder. As such, Mr. Wang Hanning, Huge Pearl, and
Pure Light are deemed to be interested in all the shares and underlying
shares of the Company owned by UK Prolific.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 23 June 2014, Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (“Harvest Fund") agreed to subscribe for
1,584,224,000 shares of the Company and was therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,584,224,000 shares for the purpose of DI filings. The
subscription was completed on 18 July 2014, when these shares were
issued and allotted to an asset management product managed by
Harvest Fund, namely China Guangfa Bank-JS FUND-QDII2.

Based on the DI filings made by the relevant shareholder(s) to the
Company, Harvest Fund is 40% owned by China Credit Trust Co., Ltd.
As such, China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in all
the shares of the Company owned by Harvest Fund.
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3. Based on the information obtained by the Company from United
Simsen Securities Limited (“United Simsen"), being the placing agent of
the placing announced by the Company on 9 May 2014 (the “Placing”)
and the underwriter of the open offer announced on the same date (the
“Open Offer") at the relevant time, United Simsen has sub-underwritten
the entire offer shares under the Open Offer to three sub-underwriters,
who have respectively agreed to sub-underwrite 2,375,000,000,
617,749,690 and 395,000,000 shares under the Open Offer. On or
around 12 May 2014, the Company received two DI filing forms from
United Simsen notifying the Company that Wang Da Yong and Simsen
International Corporation Limited (“Simsen International’) were
respectively deemed to be interested in 2,375,000,000 and 617,749,690
shares. At the relevant time, the Company was given to understand
that the deemed interest in shares referred to the shares which Wang
Da Yong and Simsen International had respectively agreed to sub-
underwrite under the Open Offer.

The Open Offer and the underwriting agreement relating to the Open
Offer were terminated on 23 June 2014, but up to 31 December 2014,
the Company has not received any DI filings reflecting Wang Da Yong's
and Simsen International's ceasing to own the deemed interest in the
relevant shares.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business and
Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party and connected transaction of
the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements and as below:
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Rental expenses paid to related ENEEARESRE
companies (note (i)) (BRZE () 555 575
Sales of food to related companies (note (ii)) MBEE A RIS E R (3 (i) 37,105 36,567
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Notes:

(i) The rental expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013
were paid to:

Speedy Fortune Limited and Hon Po Investment Limited of which
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company have a beneficial
interest. The rental expenses were based on the tenancy agreements
signed with the Group.

(i)~ The Group has the sales transactions with the following related
companies during the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Kt -

) BE-B-MFR-F-ZF+-A=t+—Hit
FEZREMAZIAT

BEERARLEBRBRABRAR  ARRRE
THEBARZEEHARmED - HEMX DR
EEAEERRR 2 HEWRTE -

(i) BE-—Z-—MER-—T—=F+-A=+—AIF
FE - AEEERTIERARETIEERS -

2014 2013
—EB-pmE —B-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T

Bestcase Hong Kong Limited

Dragongem Development Limited

Hon Po Group (Lobster King) Limited

Jing Hua (Allied) Limited

Twin Star Investments Limited

Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited
Ocean Grace Investments Limited

408
7,928

8,546
5,060
8,377
6,248

36,567

As stated in note 26, certain directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Company have a beneficial interest in the above companies. As a
result, these companies are related companies of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities, during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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Bank Borrowings and Banking Facilities

The Group had no outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December
2014 and 2013.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Corporate Governance

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 36 of this
Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company. All directors have
confirmed following specific enquiry by the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
through the year.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The audit committee has adopted terms
of reference which are in line with the CG Code. The Group's audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have
been reviewed by the audit committee, who is of the opinion that
such statements comply with applicable accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and other legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

Report of the Directors
ESEEWE

RITEERBTHRE

R-F-OER-_F-—=F+-A=+—H0 'K
;‘%IﬁrﬁiﬂaZ@ZﬁEfﬂ%% °

EHARERE

ARARRBE-_ZT—OF+ -_A=+—HILFE
N—BEHRFEHARRLE -

RER
ARARZ TR REOFERRAFRE
17TEEZBREARER -

ESETRSXEZNERESA

A FVE BN T AR BB 8%+ P 2 4R 2 5P RIE
REKRG ZRRNREEHTESFRHZ21TRFA]
PRESLADNIHERTERNERER  HERE
FEH-BETRETAZRTIRE -

BEREES

ERLEEMARFR BB ILIRITEEEN -

BERZEBSCRMBEGS  HEMXEIETA
—ﬁ°$%Eﬁ§:2—E¢+:HE+—E¢

Hﬁi%ﬁm IEW&% ﬁ

TEEREEERERAR /R 2014 47



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report

Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

I BDO Tel : +852 2218 8288

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

T8 M A SR R

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEER11155
TREHID2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(PEIRERBARIERBRAT)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 139, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies, and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

B0 China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014

BB 2B

Az 2 B ERBRAZBEM 2 ERERYE RS
PHHRERER - AMERRBARBENZHE
RN A AR B BB AR - BRI ASNRIRE B TAE
Ht A% - Nz At A& 2 AR EEM
Hih AL B FalEEEMEL -

AZBED TR R E B G AR RM 2 B EZH
EAETER T - ZRFLEURTE - NERBREIL
AETRTHRE YA 8 RETERTE U5t
HEVBRREELBESAHREGLEL A IERE

BERILEFRATIER - LWEREE BGRE M %HR
REMERBEZEREE - FRERERFAREZR
Bz #EEL - BREFMGAMBHRREELHE
MR AFFREERMER 2 EAHRRE 2 AR -
RIEEZ SRR EHE - RBEEZ B EERRER
RH{UEEMAFER 2EAMBERRAE AR
B UHEERIBATABEZEZER  MA
SHZRAAANIERE 2 MEERRER - BRIIE
MEREFGEMASTREESE | BAREEME
SEEFREAE  UFHGRAMBHRR 2 E
B2 -

AZEENRE  ARBEAERBREZEERR
THE 2 BEZERRR RO REEEE -



Independent Auditor's Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group
incurred a loss of HK$36,654,000 for year ended 31 December 2014
and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by HKS$133,810,000
as at that date. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group's

ability to continue as a going concern.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah
Practising Certificate no. P05325

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

re EEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

2014 2013
—E-—mEF —F—=F
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
B aE FH&T FAT
Turnover EER 6 37,261 36,687
Other income HAtw g A 7 6,801 68
Cost of inventories consumed BOBREIFERAR (34,321) (32,710)
Staff costs 8IMA 8 (11,027) (12,550)
Operating lease rentals EEHEdHe 8 (5,642) (6,622)
Depreciation of property, plant and %% B RFEITE
equipment 15 (662) (697)
Fuel costs and utility expenses mE RKEE (483) (504)
Fair value (loss)/gain of financial assets FEFEE 2 & BMEE 2
held for trading ANEEE(BE) e (1,286) 121
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE - BE &
plant and equipment Rf 2 B iR 8 (45) -
Other operating expenses Hhg &M= (17,608) (20,390)
Finance costs BE KR 27 (13,228) (11,936)
Loss before income tax MRFT S ATE B 8 (40,240) (48,533)
Income tax credits Frigiiie 9 3,586 4314
Lossfortheyear = EEEEM (36654) (44.219)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 H W
Items that may be reclassified HENMEENR 2 EERm2EE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEECER =5
translation of foreign operations (86,177) 115,416
Total comprehensive income AEE2HEIKREE
for the year (122,831) 71,197
Loss attributable to: THIfEEEE :
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ = DN (36,654) (44,219)
Non-controlling interests e T - -
(36,654) (44,219)
Total comprehensive income THIEE2E K RAEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N (122,831) 71,197
Non-controlling interests FEfE R - =
(122,831) 71,197
Loss per share BREE 12
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGE) (0.42) (0.56)
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5E (OB(L) (0.42) (0.56)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

At 31 December 2014
R-EBE—FEf+=H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —ET—=F
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000
B 5T FHxT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e Y 15 3,033 3,843
Exploration and evaluation assets WENFHEEE 16 724,908 727,183
Intangible assets BV EE 17 2,994,689 3,067,142
Deferred tax assets RIEFA IR E B 19 91,836 90,410
R 3814466 3,888,578
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 - 9,059
Trade receivables JE ILBR 5k 21 - 10
Financial assets held for trading BIEEEZeMEE 22 1,171 2493
Other receivables, deposits and HipEwZRE 518 %
prepayments SELNECE 23 6,269 7173
Amounts due from related companies  FEULREE A BIFUIA 26 7,196 8,507
Cash and bank balances B MIBITE 370,735 317,452
e e 385371 ¢ 344,694
Total assets BEEHAE 4,199,837 4,233,272
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e BRFX 25 2,889 6,736
Other payables and accruals Hoth FE A5 F0E & FE AT F0E 25 475,890 437,860
Amount due to a related company FE — R A R IR 26 - 5,073
Amount due to a shareholder Bt —Z AR R IE 26 40,402 =
e s19181 449,669
Net current liabilities REEEFE (133,810) (104,975)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABERRBER 3,680,656 3,783,603
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
raE MR ER

At 31 December 2014
R-ZFE—MF+=A=1+—H

2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000
B 5T FHxT T
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible notes Gl &t 27 135,484 122,256
Other payables B fE T 3RIE 25 - 112,862
Amount due to a shareholder FEf — R AR IR 26 - 40,402
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIB B & 19 53 53
Provision for long service payments RERIS B E - 86
e 135937 275659
Net assets EEFRE 3,545,119 3,607,944
Equity E=
Share capital &7 28 475,267 396,056
Reserves (e 3,069,099 3,111,135
Attributable to owners of the Company  ZRA FEHA A 1 3,544,366 3,507,191
Non-controlling interests AR 753 753
Total equity AR 3,545,119 3,507,944

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BEEN - T-RAFE=A=T A ERERETR

by the board of directors on 30 March 2015. ZEMIEE ©
Zhao Guogiang Chui Kwong Kau
Director Director
EF EF
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Statement of Financial Position

BTSSR

At 31 December 2014
R-EBE—FEf+=H=+—H

2014 2013
—2-mfF ==
NOt\eS HK$'000 HKS'000
B 5T T FHETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A IEPNGIPA T 18 3,565,978 3,569,689
N 3565978 3,569,689
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets held for trading FEEBZEREE 22 1,171 2493
Other receivables, deposits and EmEEIE - 5le Rk
prepayments TETRIE 49 590
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHR 170,071 19,006
e e 2 22,089
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals A FE A SR IR R FERTRUR 25 5,780 5,364
Amount due to a shareholder JES — R R FIE 26 40,402 -
e . 46182 5364
Net current assets REBEEFE 125,109 16,726
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRABER 3,691,087 3,586,414
Non-current liabilities FRBES
Convertible notes A AR AR 27 135,484 122,256
Amount due to a shareholder JES — R RR R FIE 26 - 40,402
e 135484 162,658
Net assets EEFE 3,555,603 3,423,756
Equity e
Share capital [N 28 475,267 396,056
Reserves 11 30 3,080,336 3,027,700
Total equity HRER 3,555,603 3,423,756

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 30 March 2015.

Zhao Guogiang

i B 5
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A RSB B

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRER AEL
Convertible Non-
Issued Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
Eg ARR

ERIREA RABH RORE ZFBHEGE RERS Sy | Nt FERERE ERAE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
AT AT AT FHT BT AL AT FHT AT
(note (i) (note (1)) (note (i)
(FzEQ)  (RREQ) (PR

Balance at 1 RZE—=F

January 2013 —A—B2#s% 396,056 30,004 15698392 2,005,233 42,321 (636,012) 3435994 753 3436,747
Total comprehensive AEERENELE

income for the year = = = = 115416 (44,219) 71197 = 71197
Balance at A\—Z—=F4_H

31 December 2013 =t—HZ#&&H 396,056 30,004 1598392 2005233 157,737 (680,231) 3,507,191 753 3507944
Total comprehensive AEERENELE

income for the year = = = = (86,177) (36,654)  (122,831) - (122831)
Issue of share capital BT 79211 - 80,795 - - - 160,006 - 160,006
Balance at RZZ—MmF+=A

31 December 2014 =t+—Bz#H 475,267 30,004 1679187 2,005,233 71,560 (716,885) 3,544,366 753 3545119
(i) Natures of reserves are explained in the notes stated in the statement (i) B E R AR B S B 5 2 B 5 5 2t (Bt =

of changes in equity of the Company (Note 30). 30) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
TERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—EB-MmF —E-=fF
HKS'000 HKS'000
TFHT FATT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBBRERE
Loss before income tax BTSRRI 18 (40,240) (48,533)
Adjustments for: FATIEE EH A%
Interest expenses FEFX 13,228 11,936
Depreciation of property, M - BEREE2TE
plant and equipment 662 697
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE REEZEE
plant and equipment 45 =
Interest income AIE=NLON (28) (60)
Fair value loss/(gain) of financial FEBEEZeRMEEZ
assets held for trading AFEEEE () 1,286 (121)
Exchange (gain)/loss, net X (Wa), EBEE (6,315) 9,544
Reversal of provision of long service R EARR TS & £ [0
payment (86) -
Written off of other payables and T LAt B A< R IA I e AT RIE
accruals (271) -
Operating cash flows before working FTAEEE AR EFIRE
capital changes RERE (31,719) (26,537)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERmD, (M) 9,059 (1,796)
Decrease in trade receivables FEU R ROR 10 309
Decrease in other receivables, Efth EURIE ~ 5] &
deposits and prepayments T FIER 755 7,172
Decrease in amounts due FEURBAE N Bl R IE R A
from related companies 1,311 876
Decrease in rental deposits and Heke REMES R
other deposits - 80
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERTERSR CRLA>), /450 (3,847) 466
(Decrease)/increase in other EL A FE AN RRIE N AT
payables and accruals I OR D), 10 (77,319) 13310
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to & —EREE A R KIE
a related company R,/ (5,073) 273
Net proceeds from sales and purchase EERIFERECERMEEMS
of financial assets held for trading IR 36 -
Cash used in operations REEBFBAZRE (106,787) (5,847)
Interest received BEHFHE 28 60
Net cash used in operating activities e AR ST (106,759) (5,787)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRenEaR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

2014 2013
—E—0OF =45
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FHET FA&TT
Cash flows from investing activities REFXBRERE
Acquisition of property, g2 E N
plant and equipment - (60)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE - BE&
plant and equipment R AEFTSRIE 20 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REXBHEE
beslpasints @BmReEE 22 60
Cash flows from financing activities RMEXEHRERE
Advanced from a shareholder RE—BREZBR - 7,000
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIR D P15 5K IA 160,006 -
Net cash generated from financing RMEXBRAELERSEH
activities 160,006 B 7.000
Net increase in cash and cash Re RERIRSIEINFERE
equivalents 53,267 1,153
Cash and cash equivalents at FHOzEEeRERES
beginning of year 317,452 316,354
Effects of foreign exchange rate MEREE) s E
changes 16 (55)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZASREFRS -
of year, comprising cash and bank BERERBITES
balances 370,735 317,452
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

Organisation and Operations

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 4 April 2001 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at Units 561112, The Center, 99 Queen'’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of Company have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with effect
from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries are
described in note 18.

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2014
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
el

F %R MY Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued,

but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations'

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear
that materiality applies to the whole of financial
statements and that the inclusion of immaterial
information can inhibit the usefulness of financial
disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in
determining where and in what order information is

presented in the financial disclosures.

60 China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11— Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply all of the
principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations when it
acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a
business as defined in that standard. The principles of
HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a joint
operation if an existing business as defined in that
standard is contributed by at least one of the parties.

HKFRS 9 (2074) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at FVTOCI if the
objective of the entity's business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at
FVTPL.

A M BmRME
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

SRR R El I

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

62

Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general
hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to better

reflect their risk management activities in financial

statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39

for derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related

interpretations.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and
the directors are not yet in a position to quantify the
effects on the Group's financial statements.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

3. Basis of Preparation

64

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules").

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(Continued)

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
HKS$36,654,000 and at the end of reporting period, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HKS$133,810,000. This situation indicates the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors anticipate the negotiation of the
Gas Sales Agreement (“GSA") as disclosed in note 5(v)
with China National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC") will
complete in the year 2015 or early 2016. The GSA with
CNPC covers a number of provisions, such as terms of
the GSA, quantity of volume commitments, gas quality,
price terms, delivery obligations and delivery point etc.
The major point is that the Group has yet to agree with
CNPC on pricing terms. The natural gas pricing reform
closed the price gap between imported and local gas
prices. The reformed pricing mechanism on natural gas
is a major reference point for the Group to negotiate the
pricing terms with CNPC. Based on the current
information available to the directors, the directors
expected that the GSA could be finalised in the year 2015
or early 2016. The Group will then accelerate the
exploration, development and pilot-production of oil/gas
in the field so that the overall financial performance of the
Group will be significantly improved, as well as its
operating cash position. In order to ease short term
liquidity pressure, the Company has succeeded in placing
new shares in 2014 with total proceed of
HKS$160,006,000. A preliminary natural gas sharing
proposal is discussed and agreed by the joint
management committee which comprises
representatives from CNPC and the Group at 18 February
2014 (the "Proposal’). Based on the Proposal, the Group
will receive the proposed distribution of natural gas from
pilot-production which was delivered and sold before 1
January 2014. The 2nd natural gas sharing proposal is
discussed and agreed by the joint management
committee at 3 March 2015 (the “2nd Proposal’) which
cover the natural gas from pilot-production which was
delivered and sold during the year ended 31 December
20174. The directors expected the proposed distribution
from the above proposals will be received during year
2015 and 2016. However, the unit price in the proposals
is only a preliminary unit price used for this preliminary
sharing, the final unit price is still subject to change and
would only be confirmed after the formal GSA signed.
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3. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

66

(b)

(©

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)

The directors have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the eighteen months
ending 30 June 2016 taking into account the measures
as referred to above, and consider that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the period of the
forecast. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

If the going concern basis is not appropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the values of the
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,

respectively.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKS"), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4.

68

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit

or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be

required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed

of.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014

4, BEBREGTTHEE)

@

EBEHRGESEE(E)

WhETT T EEB 2 ER AR ERK
BEHZAFEERE - HERHEK
EFELFE  ERARTTANGES
B (& AUE B RS 128 A) AT
BMEEENEERR 2 AFEEZH
ERMELE  TRAHERR - D
BREEXRBZIAREZMAEE
b AR BN IR FERR ©

AEBENIE QR 2 a8 (W&
BHREEHIRE)IEREEZ DA
AEE s BIHT RS 2 REE
BFAFE - WRBRIRERKTE AR
R 2 B8 - FFERER AR
BEDENIERZREZAFE
BZEOEMEZRE  HERNERE
R ARERARBDHEEA °

R AEBARENB R R 2 ZEHIHE - H
EREDRTIIME ZZEE : ()
FTRER (B 2 A FEE R AR 2
wmNFEERE  B()ZMER
AZEE(BRERE) R BEREMIE
ZRRERBE 2 BRE(E - S ATst %M
BRANEMEE WSR2 HER
HEHRBEEXRBERAREZ R
TR



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest's share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there

may be a change in any of these elements of control.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company'’s
statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group
and at least one other party. Joint control is assessed
under the same principles as control over subsidiaries.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

70

(©

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured

through a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any

other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Other than gas properties, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation
net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 3 — 6 years or over the term
of the lease; if shorter
Furniture and fixtures 4 — 8 years
Motor vehicles 6 — 8 years
Depreciation on gas properties is provided to write off the
cost of the gas properties using the units of production
method utilising the contingent resources or reserve, as
appropriate as the depletion base.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that

commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs

are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage

are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for

impairment before reclassification.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
assets is reviewed when facts and circumstances
suggest that the carrying amount of an exploration and
evaluation assets may exceed its recoverable amount.
When one or more of the following events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not

be recoverable, the Group shall perform an impairment

test in accordance with HKAS 36.

the period for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not

expected to be renewed.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e)

®

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

substantive expenditure on further exploration for
and evaluation of natural resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of natural resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area.

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full
from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount.

Intangible assets

0

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The interests in petroleum
production sharing contracts were amortised on
unit of production method.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4, ERETBE®)

(f) Intangible assets (Continued) (H E\EREEE)
(i) Impairment (i) JfE

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired (see the accounting policies
in respect of impairment losses for tangible and

intangible assets below).
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease
payments are analysed between capital and interest. The
interest element is charged to profit or loss over the
period of the lease and is calculated so that it represents
a constant proportion of the lease liability. The capital
element reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment under cost model;
and

investments in subsidiaries.
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4.

76

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the first-in first out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments

0

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

4= A

e B HRR I
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4, ERETBE®)

() Financial Instruments (Continued) () &®MIAAE)
() Financial assets (Continued) () =@EEGE)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of

impairment may include:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

granting concession to a debtor because of

debtor's financial difficulty;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset's recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4, ERETBE®)

() Financial Instruments (Continued) () &®MIAAE)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) =@MEEGE)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company's own equity instruments is classified as

an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity
reserve).
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

() Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry dates,
the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or

expiration of the option.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

82

0

(k)

o

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vii)  Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

o

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the
asset or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity, liability, is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of

reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

84

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which will probably result in an outflow of economic
benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities'
separate financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Employee benefits

() Short term benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short
term employee benefits are recognised in the year
when the employees render the related service.
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4.

86

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Employment Ordinance long service payments
Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
‘Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for long
service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments where the termination meets the required
circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iv)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(p) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

()  Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is
at the time of delivery and title is passed to
customer.

(i)  Interestincome is recognised on a time-apportioned

basis, taking into account the principal amounts

outstanding and the interest rates applicable.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(q) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

0]

(if)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(0)

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.
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4.

88

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person's children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person's spouse
or domestic partner.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

@

(ii)

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
balance. Provisions are applied to receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balance may not be collectible. The identification of
impaired receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of receivables and provision for impaired
receivables in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment may be required.

Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or reserves
Engineering estimates of the Group's oil and gas reserves
and resources as inherently imprecise and represent only
approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the
engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated
oil and gas reserves can be designated as “proved".
Proved and proved developed reserves estimates will be
updated at least annually and take into account recent
production and technical information about each field. In
addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to
year, the estimate of proved and proved developed
reserves also changes. The change will be considered as
a change in estimation for accounting purposes and is
reflected on a prospective basis in related depreciation
rates.
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90

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimation of oil and gas resources and/or reserves
(Continued)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Depreciation rates are determined
based on estimated proved developed reserve quantities
(the denominator) and capitalised costs of producing
properties (the numerator). Producing properties’
capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit-of-

production method.

Recognition of deferred income tax

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4(l),
deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised, and it is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax assets are realised.
In determining the deferred income tax assets to be
recognised, management is required to estimate the
future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary of the
Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability of
each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation of
tax losses. Any difference between these estimates and
the actual outcome will impact the Group's result in the
period in which the actual outcome is determined.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(iv) Suspended Investment

v)

For investments which have been suspended from
trading as at year end, the fair value was measured with
reference to the latest market price for the security (2013:
with reference to the price for similar securities), and the
significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement was the discount to the latest market price
of the security which has been estimated at 70% (2013:
50% discount to the price of similar securities). The
directors consider this appropriate to reflect the illiquidity
and certain unfavourable news of the suspended
investment. Any increase in the discount would result in a
corresponding decrease in the fair value of the
investments. The carrying amounts of these investments
are approximately HKS$1,091,000 (2013: HKS$2,227,000).

Revenue

Pursuant to the petroleum production sharing contract
(the "Kashi Contract”) disclosed in note 17, China Era
Energy Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Era") is entitled to gas generated from the Akemomu Gas
Field during the exploration period in accordance to the
entitlement method stated on the Kashi Contract. During
the year ended 31 December 2014, 202,670,000 (2013:
314,830,000) cubic meters of gas was produced by the
jointly controlled operation. According to the Kashi
Contract, all gas produced from the Akemomu Gas Field
should be sold to CNPC, unless otherwise agreed and a
GSA should be entered into by CNPC and China Era to
specify the unit price charged by CNPC to the jointly
controlled operation. As at 31 December 2014, the GSA
has not yet been signed between the Group and CNPC. In
the absence of the GSA, the Group considered that there
is material uncertainty of the unit price and hence
relevant gas revenue could not be estimated reliably and
no revenue can be recognised during the year. Based on
the current information available to the directors, the
directors expected that the GSA could be finalised in the
year 2015 or early 2016. As disclosed in note 3(b), the
unit price in the Proposal is only a preliminary estimate
price used for the preliminary sharing of gases delivered,
and the final unit price are still subject to change and
would only be confirmed after the formal GSA signed.
Therefore, the relevant revenue could not be estimated
reliably and no revenue can be recognised during the
year.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

Impairment on exploration and evaluation assets and
intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets
and intangible assets (collectively referred to as “Kashi
Related Assets”) for impairment according to accounting
policies stated in notes 4(e) and 4(f). The assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions and estimates. While
conducting an impairment review of the assets, the
Group makes certain judgement in making assumptions
about the future gas prices and production costs,
changes in these estimates may result in significant
variance to the statement of comprehensive income. The
Group has reached an agreement with CNPC on a
preliminary gas price (note 3(b)) on 18 February 2014 and
3 March 2015. However, the final unit price to be shared
is not yet determined and will be confirmed upon signing
the formal GSA. In estimating the value in use of
exploration and intangible assets, the Group has made
reference to prevailing gas prices in the relevant markets.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

Turnover and Segment Information

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports that are reqularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with
the Group's internal organisation and reporting structure, the

operating segments are based on nature of business.
The Group has the following two reportable segments:

The Exploration and Production segment is engaged in the
exploration, development, production and sales of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is

engaged in the sales of food and beverages to restaurants.

The segment information provided to the Board for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 are as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continued) 6. EEBERSBER @)
(a) Information about reportable segment revenue, profit or (a) FRATEF{FHBUE  RAREED
loss and other information ERRHEAER
Sales of
Exploration Food and
and Beverages
Production Business Total
HERM
BREREE RECBIEK #st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FHET FET FET
For the year ended BE-_Z—MF
31 December 2014 +TZRA=+t—BLEE
Revenue from external HINERR P W R
customers - 37,261 37,261

Reportable segment (loss)/gain 7] 2 5 28R FTS L Al

before income tax (E518) W zs (12,604) 547 (12,057)
Segment results included: DEEERLE
Interest income F 2 A 28 - 28
Depreciation e 618 44 662
Additions to non-current assets  FERENEERE 15,023 - 15,023
Reportable segment assets Al 2|HEBEE 3,927,494 9,217 3,936,711
Reportable segment liabilities 2wy Atk (465,874) (7,125) (472,999)
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A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continued) 6. EEBERSMBER &)
(a) Information about reportable segment revenue, profit or (a) FRATEF{FHBUE  RAREED
loss and other information (Continued) BRREMER(E)
Sales of
Exploration Food and
and Beverages
Production Business Total
HERM
BEREE  REBER HEt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHIT FAT FAT
For the year ended BE-_Z—=
31 December 2013 TZA=+—HLFE
Revenue from external SN P e
customers - 36,687 36,687
Reportable segment loss A 2 ¥ 5 B R P45 15 Al &S 18
before income tax (19,696) (306) (20,002)
Segment results included: DEEBE B -
Interest income FEWA 59 = 59
Depreciation e 635 62 697
Additions to non-current assets  IERBIEERE 98,584 60 98,644
Reportable segment assets A2{RSHEE 4,102,483 18,289 4,120,772
Reportable segment liabilities A2®HE Ak (540,504) (16,748) (557,252)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continued) 6. EEBERSBER @)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) FEHIFEANEE BEEREE
assets and liabilities Z ¥ iR
2014 2013
—E—ImF —E—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FE&T FAT
Loss before income tax FRETS T AT 18
Reportable segment loss before A 280 HERETEH A B E
income tax (12,057) (20,002)
Other income HAn g A 1 9
Fair value (loss)/gain of financial FIEEE S REEL
assets held for trading AEEE(EE) e (1,286) 121
Finance costs A& KA (13,228) (11,936)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO AC4AH =R N A AR
expenses (13,670) (16,725)
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR RIEE (40,240) (48,533)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continued) 6. EEBERSMBER &)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss, (b) FEHIFEANEE BEEREE
assets and liabilities (Continued) ZHER (&)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=%F
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FE&T FET
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AIE2HHBEE 3,936,711 4,120,772
Deferred tax assets IEIEFIAE B 91,836 90,410
Other receivables o fEUGRIR 48 591
Financial assets held for trading FIEEBECSMEE 117 2,493
Unallocated head office and ROBLEMRERRARIEE
corporate assets 170,071 19,006
Total assets BEE 4,199,837 4233272
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2WmoEaE 472,999 557,252
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIB A E 53 53
Convertible notes EIE L ES7 135,484 122,256
Amount due to a shareholder B —RRZ R FRIA 40,402 40,402
Unallocated head office and RAOBBMER R AREE
corporate liabilities 5,780 5,365
Total liabilities FEN=L 654,718 725,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

6. Turnover and Segment Information (Continued) 6. EEBERSBER @)
(c) Geographic information (c) HEER

TR AEEBREKANIFELZ
W RIFRBEECREHRREER
S(HEEFRBEE ) KT ©

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue from external customers and non-current assets

other than deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current

assets’).
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMEF 2 W EEFRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-RmE —T—=F ZEB-NFE —T-—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET FAT FET FHTT
Hong Kong E iG]
(place of domicile) 37,261 36,687 122 264
People's Republic of China 1% A R 1
("PRC") (ThE)) - ~ 3722508 3797904
37,261 36,687 3,722,630 3,798,168
7. Other Income 7. HwA
2014 2013
—E-MEF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHERT FH&T
Bank interest income RITHEUA 28 60
Sundry income FETEUA - 8
Reversal of long service payment REfRTE & O 86 -
Government subsidy for disposal & RE 2 BN ED
of motor vehicle 101 =
Written off of other payables and accruals — Jifi#5E b fE A 3B K 5+ 30E 271 =
Exchange gain e 3 W 6,315 =
6,801 68
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A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

8. Loss Before Income Tax 8. BREIEBHAIEE
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax is arrived BRETS AT B EE kR ¢

at after charging:

Auditor's remuneration ZERT B 921 900
Cost of inventories consumed KOBREGFERA 34,321 32,710
Compensation of a legal claim BE—IHEERSR 4,250 =
Depreciation of property, M BERZEITE

plant and equipment 662 697
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE REH2ER

plant and equipment 45 =
Exchange loss, net b 5 S8 5E - 9,544

Staff costs (including directors' remuneration) B T A (BIEEEHE)

— Wages and salaries and other benefits — IE N REAMET 10,900 12,427
— Pension fund contributions — RN EIfER 127 123
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 11,027 N
Operating lease rentals KEHERS
— Related companies —BEAR 555 575
— Third parties —%=5 5,087 6,047
5,642 6,622
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSSR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

9. Income Tax Credits 9. FIEHIESR
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of e 2mBERANTERE
comprehensive income represents:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=fF
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FAT
Current tax — PRC BNEARRIE — R (4) )
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax BEAT I — BAERISEH
— under provision in respect of prior years —RAERFERETR - @)
Deferred tax — current year (note 19) RIERIE — AREE (M5E19) 3,590 4,327
Total income tax credits FriS ik e 42 %8 3,586 4,314
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013:16.5%) on BB MG TIRE & R FH R TR T2
the estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise 16.5%( — T — =% :165%) M XFHE - 1
income tax is calculated at 25% on the estimated assessable B E SRR BE AL ET ERTUE MR
profit for the year. TR 26% 1 E -
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11.

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Tax Credits (Continued)

The income tax credits for the year can be reconciled to the

loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

‘e BRI T
For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

B8R &)

REERERERTEGAZERERALZ
BRETIS T AT BEBRAN T

2014 2013
—E—-NF —=E—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FERT FAT
Loss before income tax BR PTG B A B 18 (40,240) (48,533)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate BEAMNEHTE16.5%
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) —ZT—=%F :165%)
BT E (6,639) (8,008)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REMBAERELE 2
operating in other jurisdiction B AR ETR 2 (1,283) (1,065)
Tax effect of income not taxable IERTIUA 2 TG o 2
for tax purposes 91) (42)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT A 2 B2
for tax purposes 3,674 3,624
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FAMBEBE M E (29) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZARBATIEEGE
recognised mBTE 782 1,175
Under provision in respect of prior years BARFEERETR - 2
Income tax credits for the year FAFTSTHIER (3,586) (4314)
Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company 10. ZAREEABLEE
The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes an EARRDB 2 EHmEKP - NARER ARG
amount of HK$28,159,000 (2013: HKS$18,918,000) which has &5 18 B #E — % 7 IE 28,159,000 t( = =&
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. —=4% :18,918,000%7T) °
Dividend 11. B2

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of reporting period (2013: Nil).

BHE_Z-—ME+_A=+—HILFELE
IS FREMBRE (ZE—=F: &) - B
REPRETELRREMRE(ZE—=5F :
&) o
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ire PSR R T et

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

12. Loss per Share 12. BREE
(a) Basic @ E=X
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BREXNBEIAAQTEE AEMN
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted B8R A BRI B BT SR AR NfE S
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the HETH -
period.
2014 2013
—E—0OF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FH&T
Loss attributable to owners RREHEB AELER
of the Company (36,654) (44,219)
Number of Number of
shares shares
RGOEE avar4E|
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 17 & @& hnfE 15 8
shares in issue 8,645,956,734  7,921,120,000
HK Cents HK Cents
A4l Pl
Basic loss per share FREAEE (0.42) (0.56)
(b) Diluted by #%
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share HE_Z-—NFER-_ZT—=F+=-A
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 as the =+— EiﬁEZHﬁﬁ&%Eﬂééﬁi
potential ordinary shares on convertible notes are anti- IREAREBAR - LTy R R AT#
dilutive. BRERZBTTRARAREELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

13. EECEE

13. Directors’ Emuneration

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-_Z—NFE+-A=+—HLFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme 2014
fees inkind contributions Total
e EER Bk ==-NmF
EEWmE BYFE sHEIfR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET FExT FET
Executive directors HITES
Chui Kwong Kau YR - 455 17 472
Huang Changpbi (i) EE() 356 - - 356
Zhao Guogiang jtH Bl 58 1,347 - - 1,347
Zhang Zhenming (ii) o 4 A (i) 357 - - 357
Non-executive directors FHTES
Gu Quan Rong (ii) B2 4 (i) - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing L ET 180 - - 180
Sun Xiaoli R 180 - - 180
Wang Yongguang K 180 - - 180
2,600 455 17 3,072

(i) Mr. Huang Changbi resigned on 2 December 2014.

(i)~ Mr. Zhang Zhenming resigned on 27 November 2014.

(i) Dr. Gu Quan Rong appointed on 3 September 2014.

() =HEBEAR-Z-OF+_A—HFE-

(i) FIERBPEER-_Z=—NWE+—B=++tH

BHE -

(i) EREBIN_ZT-NFNA=HEZE-
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ire PSR R T et

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

13. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013

13. EEZME®)

BE—_ZE—=F+_A=1+—HIFE

Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits scheme 2013
fees inkind contributions Total
£ = 12114 BIR  —E-=F
£k B SrEIfEK G
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FA&TT T T FH&T
Executive directors HITES

Chui Kwong Kau EFIR = 455 15 470
Huang Changbi H5EE 406 = = 406
Liu Baohe (i) ZIZF() 423 = = 423
Zhao Guogiang Bl 5% 844 = = 844
Zhang Zhenming SR IREA 406 = = 406

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors

Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing {HERE 180 = = 180
Sun Xiaoli RER 180 = = 180
Wang Yongguang K 180 = = 180
2,619 455 15 3,089

(i) Mr. Liu Baohe resigned on 1 October 2013.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2074 (2013:
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

14. Individuals with Highest Emoluments 14. REHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EARSERUGRERHMALTER  —((=
Group, one (2013: one) director of the Company whose T—=F: (A RAEZEZZHFMN EX
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 13 above. MiFE 133K - MM (=T —=4 : Wfz)
The emoluments of the remaining four (2013: four) individuals AL (BAEESRERAR) ZFBNT -

who were senior management of the Group were as follows:

2014 2013
—E—0OF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHAT
Wages and salaries and other benefits T& R#FE AR EARA 2,533 3,142
Pension fund contributions RIRE K 9 15
2,542 3,157
Their emoluments were within the following bands B2 FMHEN T T 5 E
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=%F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
Nil to HKS1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 4 4
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERRE
The Group REHE
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles Total
HEMEEL BRREE AE ok
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
Cost B A

At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=%—A—H gr7 851 4642 6,470
Additions NE = 60 = 60
Exchange differences bE 5 E 58 24 21 151 196
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=5+-A=+—H 1,001 932 4,793 6,726
Disposal & (238) (277) = (515)
Exchange differences PE N ZERR (19) (15) (113) (147)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=A=+—H 744 640 4,680 6,064

Accumulated depreciation RINE

At 1 January 2013 R-ZT—=F—A—H 925 378 815 2118
Charge for the year rEEER 32 167 498 697
Exchange differences ] 24 10 34 68
At 31 December 2013 RZF—=5+=-A=+—H 981 555 1,347 2,883
Charge for the year AEEER 20 144 498 662
Disposal HE (238) (212) = (450)
Exchange differences BN EE (19) ©) (36) (64)
__At31December2014  R=F-MEFA=F-H (s S A;g 1809 3031
Carrying amount HREE
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—mE+=A=1+—8 = 162 2,871 3033
At 31 December 2013 RZF—=5+=-A=+—H 20 377 3446 3843

106 cChina Energy Development Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2014



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf— A=+ —HIFFE

16. Exploration and Evaluation Assets 16. BIERRFAHEE
2014 2013
—E—MEF =
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 727,183 607,273
Additions NE 15,023 98,584
Exchange differences b =58 (17,298) 21,326
At 37 December R+=—A=+—8H 724,908 727,183
17. Intangible Assets 17. BLEE
HKS$'000
F& T
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—HF—H 2,970,539
Exchange differences PE 5 =58 96,603
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R=-ZE—=F+—-A=+—8K
—ZE—pFE—HF—H 3,067,142
Exchange differences ME =50 (72,453)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—mOF+=—A=+—H 2,994,689
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17. Intangible Assets (continued) 17. BREE &)

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Kashi
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
Details of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Kashi
Contract with CNPC to drilling, exploration, exploitation and
production of oil and/or natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim
Basin in the PRC. CNPC is a stated-owned company
established in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Kashi Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agrees to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Kashi Contract is 30 years from 1
June 2009, unless extended due to the production period.

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations.
The development costs incurred shall be paid by CNPC and
China Era in accordance with 51% and 49% respectively.
However, CNPC's portion of operating costs shall be advanced
by China Era and recovered from the production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Kashi Contract, the evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is share oil,
which is apportioned between 51% by CNPC and 49% by China
Era.
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17. Intangible Assets (Continued)

The Group has been carrying out exploration activities at the
site and now working with professional parties to prepare and
revise the reserve report. The preparation of the formal reserve
report is a part of the Overall Development Program (“ODP”)
which required government approval before full production
could be started. As at 31 December 2014, the approval of ODP
from National Development and Reform Commission has not
yet been obtained. The delay in finalising the formal reserve
report together with the ODP is the major reason for the delay
in government approval. Base on current information available
to the directors, the directors expected that the ODP should be
ready by 2016 and the development and production period
should start immediately after obtaining relevant government
approval.

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results
for the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the Group's interest in the Kashi Contract:

(@) Result for the year
As the project was still under the evaluation period and
commercial production had not yet commenced for the
year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, there is no
result recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

17.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE

BILEE®)

AEE-BEEMBRARGREE RIERR
EATAENHELERFERS - EXFHE
BENRESBRARBAZE TR ((ABRA
BARHN—ED - MAREFHETRALK
FFHtER T RERR - R - E—MF+ A
=t+—H AAESERERNNAEZES
ZHEBHRABTRAX - MEEREEARFE
RESEFEEHE D RVTBEHR T X
ZER - EREFERAAIRGZER  BF
THIERHRESRHRN T —"Fx -
TR R A ERR NSRRI AD
R °

TXHIGEMBRENFANERZEE
BEREEME  ATERKERETAH
ZiEm AR

(a) AEEEE
MRS EAREE - MER—F
—=EtZ A=+ BIEEDER
SRR MARBEELE Mt
A2 KSR ERAEHEE -
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(b)

(©

17. Intangible Assets (continued) 17. BREE &)
Assets and liabilities by EBEEREE
2014 2013
—E—0OF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FERT FAT
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 3,033 3,744
Exploration and evaluation assets RN EEE 724,908 727,183
Intangible assets mEE 2,994,689 3,067,142
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIA B B 91,836 90,410
Current assets MENEE 204,863 304,414
Current liabilities mENBE (465,874) (427,642)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - (112,862)
Net assets BEFRE 3,553,455 3,652,389
Commitments (c) &Ik
2014 2013
—E—0F —E—=4F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FERT FAT
Capital commitments: B AR EYE
Contracted but not provided BEIAERFE T
for in respect of: EIRRHE -
— Exploration and evaluation — B RFERAX
expenditures 148,436 167,291
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18. Interests in Subsidiaries

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

18. RHIB AR 2%

The Company
AT
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —=2—=

HKS$'000 HKS'000
FHBxT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - RS 2,928,527 2,928,527
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE 1,153,084 1,156,795
4,081,611 4,085,322
Less: Impairment loss W REEE (515,633) (515,633)
3,565,978 3,569,689

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and in substance a part of the Company's interests in the
subsidiaries in the form of quasi-equity loans.

FERHI B AR FIRTVEER %8 - BEE
ERARRRRMB AR 2 s A EERE
HER) 2 —&7 -

/
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18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. RMIB AR 2= (&)
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 AABIRZE—ME+_A=+—HzZxZ
December 2014 are as follows: MEBARFENAT
Country/place of
Form of business incorporation/ Country/place of  Principal Issued and fully Percentage of
Name structure establishment operation activities paid share capital interests held
ML/ TglAz/ BEIR
NEER EXERIA RUER/HE  #% TEER BRBA BEEZAAL
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
China Energy Resources Limited liability company  Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Ordinary share 100% -
Holdings Ltd holding HKST
R RERARAR BRAR B B REHER LaR1ET
Hon Po (China) Catering Limited liability company  Hong Kong Hong Kong Sales of food Ordinary shares = 100%
Management Limited and beverages HK$10,000
EE(TE)RREBARAR  BRAA B &k HERRR Zi@fk100007%T
BRI
Hon Po International Limited  Limited liability company  British Virgin Hong Kong Investment Ordinary shares 100% =
Islands holding USS151
EERRERAR BRAT ABARES Bk REER E@R151 T
Totalbuild Investments Group  Limited liability company  Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment Ordinary shares 100% =
(Hong Kong) Limited holding USS1
HEREASE (B ARAR  BRAR &k Bk RARR ERRIET
China Era Energy Power Limited liability company Hong Kong PRC Oil and gas Ordinary shares = 100%
Investment (Hong Kong) exploration HKS1
Limited
hEFRERRE (BH) ARAR &k i RER LERIAT
ARAR
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19. Deferred Taxation 19. IELEH IR
(@) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in the (@) REAUBMRARZBELERIEA(E
consolidated statement of financial position are as E)/ BEERSHNT
follows:
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities arising from: RERE (BE) BBELES :
The Group REH

Accelerated

Exploration  depreciation Tax
costs allowances losses Total
BERRA  mEHRERE BIEEE ko]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FTAT FTAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2013 W-E—=F—F—8 (83,305) 568 (515) (83252)
Credit for the year FEHE (4,327) = = (4,327)
Exchange differences bE H =% (2,778) = = (2,778)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZEB—=F
+=-A=+-8 (90,410) 563 (515) (90,357)
Credit for the year FEER (3,590) = = (3,590)
Exchange differences M =58 2164 - - 2164
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NF
+=-A=+-A (91,836) 563 (515) (91,783)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances MERI MR KM E 2 BELETIR
for financial reporting purposes: EERDITIT ¢
2014 2013
—E2-MmEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE (91,836) (90,410)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIBEE 53 53
(91,783) (90,357)
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19. Deferred Taxation (continued) 19. IEFERIIE (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) KREREEHEBEEE
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in AEBWEGERN_ZT-—MOFE+-A
respect of cumulative tax losses of approximate =+—HZR5HIIEEIE 483,781,000
HK$83,781,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: BIL(ZZE—=% : 79,710,000 7T)
HKS$79,710,000) as it is not probable that future taxable BWRELTEEE  REANERE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be AR IA AR AP e B A B A
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entity. The ZEBE Z AR RERTUE T o RIRER
tax losses will not expire under the current tax legislation. IBE - HIABERE TR -
20. Inventories 20. #&
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —E-=fF
HKS'000 HKS'000
TFHT FATT
Food and beverages R &R - 9,059
21. Trade Receivables 21. BWERRX
Customers are usually offered a credit period ranging from one BEE—RESZEERA—ZEZ=HAATE -
to three months. An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at RZE-—MER-_T—=F+-"A=+—H
31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows: ZEBERRERER AT AT ¢
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —E-=%F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHERT FHET
Current to 3 months BNEAE=(EA - 10
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

Trade Receivables (continued) 21. EWERR (&)
All trade receivables are neither individually nor collectively BRI 2 B MR RERZRET
considered to be impaired as there was no recent history of BE BHEEAEEZBYRFEZHER
default and relate to a number of independent customers that PP SR8 BT BN AR HE R RSB I o IR IR
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past BELE  ERERGEEAMNZKEERED
experience, management believes that no impairment BERE  REAREERETESEAZ R
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there B AR DR R PIR B D] o 26 B
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the A FERFFEEAERR
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
Financial Assets Held for Trading 22. HEEBEZERERE
The Group and Company
FEBERAEAR
2014 2013
—E-—mEF —T—=%
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET THETT
Trading securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLEMZEEZS
at fair value E /NS {1 1,171 2,493
HRERGERG2REMS - AFEET

For investments which have been suspended from trading as
at year end, the fair value was measured with reference to the
latest market price for the security (2013: with reference to the
price for similar securities), and the significant unobservable
input used in the fair value measurement was the discount to
the latest market price of the security which has been
estimated at 70% (2013: 50% discount to the price of similar
securities). The directors consider this appropriate to reflect
the illiquidity and certain unfavourable news of the suspended
investment. The carrying amounts of these investments are
approximately HKS1,091,000 (2013: HKS$2,227,000). Fair value
of trading securities listed in Hong Kong which have not been
suspended from trading are based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

2EFLEATME(ZS—=F: 2ZRE
FBHZEWR)GTE  MAFEBEFEERZ
BAIEABRER A TIE ST M BRI
FEERATN(ZE—=F : AEEHE
B ITREE0%) - EZRA/UBRERRY
BIENRBUETERETIAEE - IbE
& 2 BREEA) 41,001,000 T (—E—=
F:2227,00087T) - WAREFEILEZEZS
BLEMEBEEES  HATFEEREBRESHAR
FsRmifEstE o
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23. Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments  23. HEEWRIE - ST RFENFE

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—2-mF —F=F
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FERT FAT
Other receivables, deposits and HmpEsas - 51k
prepayments TR ERIA 18,152 19,056
Refundable deposits AEREIETE
— Mr. Wang Jian Guo (note) — FEBR A (FTsE) 20,725 20,725
e 38877 . 39,781 _
Less: Provision for impairment: W ORERE
— Refundable deposit (note) — AR EE] € (i EE) (20,725) (20,725)
— Other receivables and deposits — Hib e IB MRS (11,883) (11,883)
(32,608) (32,608)
6,269 7173
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Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepayments
(Continued)

Note:

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo (“Mr. Wang"), an
independent third party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy
Even"), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into the agreement in relation
to the proposed acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the
target companies, Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability
Company (17 #6% FMIEE B R = £ 22 A]) and Hui Li County Wan Feng
Mining Limited Liability Company (€ B %2 LEEFRET A7) of
an aggregate consideration of RMB498 million (equivalent of HKS516
million) (the “Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability
companies established in the PRC. The principal activities of both
companies are in the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable
deposit of HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to
Mr. Wang upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
Company executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed
acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit,
both parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued
a Writ of Summons against Mr Wang claiming the principal and interest
on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court of First
Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang shall pay to Joy Even the sum of
RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. The Group is now
considering actions to recover the said amount from Mr. Wang. As at
31 December 2014, all of the refundable deposits were impaired and
there is no provision for impairment (2013: Nil) charged to profit or loss
for the year.

Loan Receivables

Loan receivables of HKS$51,941,000 from independent third
parties, which were unsecured, interest-bearing at 0.5% to 1%
per month and repayable within 1 year have been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2011. Of this amount,
HKS$37.1 million was loan receivable from SMI Publishing
Group Limited (“SMI"), a company listed on SEHK, but trading
of this company's shares was suspended from 28 April 2005
and up to the date of this report. The loan receivable from SMI
is secured by a personal guarantee of a third party. Another
HKS14.8 million was loan receivable from Birmingham
International Holding Limited (“Birmingham”), a company listed
on SEHK. The loan receivable from Birmingham is unsecured.

23.

24.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE

HtEWRIR - fTERBAKIER
(4)

Bt -

RZZZ+FNA-TMAE FREEE(ER
) (BuE=F)BNIBREERAE(THIE]
(REBZHMBAR) T ZinE ((HH]) - AEE
BEZBEERRMESEANBREGREER
ALEEGREYREAREAARSEZ51% K
- @K (E A AR #498000,0007c (18 & »
516,000,000/ 7T) - MER A ARFBEKI 2
BRAE - FEEBHRRPERAERES - A5
BEREIHEFATAELIMARETS
20,725,000 7 7t (#8574 A R ¥ 20,000,000 7T) °
RZZZENFEA=1T—H  ARAIELERE
BB IR 2 KR - FitE - AR EIAGREIE]
© EIMBREENRHBECEE - RZT——F
=A+A8 - RIERELEREERSHRK  BFA
REZESZASENE -RZT—=ZFA+N
B RidEEHAEEEEANRIBELHESBAR
¥ 22723287 TR EEHA T - AEBERIEZEEHK
HRITE) - MEXREWE LS - R=T—Mm4F
+TZA=+—B 2FAREZReHERE B
WERAAFE ZBENRAERE (T —=F:
=) o

W E K

KB B E =75 1) E B RK51,941,000 %
TAEERKE R A0SER B ERA
R—FERNER - ZEFEREBEEZ_Z—F
+—A=+—HLFEEEERME - ZER
HER + 37,100,000 T ARIKE X T k&
BERARI(TER]) 2ER - Z AR A
RETEMAR BRZZEZTRFEA=TN
BREEAHREBAH  ZARZROBEF
BE - EREXZERA—ZFE=FNEA
FEREIIF - 55 14,800,000 7t & FE UL
BRESIREIER AR AR ([EBEE]) (RE
RErTEMZRAE) 2B - BUIABHZ &
TR -
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24. Loan Receivables (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group is still
negotiating with Birmingham and SMI, but has not been able to
obtain viable repayment proposal from SMI and Birmingham.
The Group is now actively considering to take appropriate

action to secure the Group's position.
25. Trade Payables, Other Payables and Accruals
Trade payables

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

24,

25.

EBREFR &)

BE_T-MF+_A=1t—HALFE &
SENREAHREXETER  HEXK
BEAE I RIR L AT TTHOE SRR - AREIE

BiIRE BREVEE1TE) -

B RHIRE o

SARKE MR

PR RRR - BN FRIE R IEST

/|

FE 1S BR X

REBR T —NFER=Z

—=%+=A

=t+—AZENERRERE ST

2014 2013

—E—mE —F—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET TFHIT
Current to 3 months BNEAZ= =& A - 3,790
Over 1 year —FE 2,889 2,946
Total trade payables S BRFR %A 2,889 6,736
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25. Trade Payables, Other Payables and Accruals 25. IR - HAut BB R FES

(Continued) FIE ()
Other payables and accruals Hin e RBEREFER
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-0mOE —Z=—= —E-{mOE —Z=—=
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FTHET FHT FHET FABT
Current portion: BNERER Y -
Exploration and evaluation BNR R w4 FE A
cost payables (note (i) B (BREEE (1) 442,533 419,175 - =
Other payables and H At T RIE R
accruals FEETRIE 33,357 18,685 5,780 5,364
475,890 437,860 5,780 5,364
Non-current portion: FERNERE S -
Exploration and evaluation BOR R w4 FE 1
cost payables (note (i) B (BREEE (1)) - 100,162 - -
Other payable H b fET /I - 12,700 - =
- 112,862 - -
Note: Hiat

(i) Exploration and evaluation cost payables represents balances
payable to sub-contractors engaged by the Group to perform
exploration and evaluation works on the area designated in the
petroleum production sharing contract as disclosed in Note 17
to the financial statements.

(i)  MBASRRMTEETATIREE - BT RN IR R AT
ERAEREN TAKERE RAHEE
BHNEEZRBETHRIGTEZYE
P HY A ER
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26. Amounts Due from/to Related Companies and

(@)

26. FEW BENBEEATR—BRRE

a Shareholder MIE
Pursuant to section 161B of the Companies Ordinance, (@) REDAFHEHIFE161BIE  HEZIEHE
the amounts disclosed hereunder represent amounts due B oRERWEEARZHKIE M
from related companies in which directors of certain RABETHEBARI ZEZREHF
subsidiaries of the Company have held beneficial EEmiE
interests:
The Group AEH
Metropolis
Harbour View Ocean
Bestcase  Dragongem Hop Po Group Hon Po JingHua  Twin Star Chinese Grace Speedy
HongKong  Development (Lobster King) Holdings (Allied)  Investments Cuisine  Investments Fortune
Name of related companies Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Total
EREN

BEEE EZR¥R (BEAT) ERER REMR)  BERE RRE  RRRE i
BENRER ARAE  ARAE  ERAW  ARARY  ARAR  ARAE  ARAE  ERAW  ARAR aE

HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000

TR TR T TETL TAR TR ThR TR TERL TERL
Balance &85
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME
TZA=1-H - - 6,883 4 300 - 9 - - 7196
At 31 December 2013 RIS
TZA=t-H 550 1,340 - - 1522 1,163 1,003 2610 259 8507
Maximum outstanding FREEARENE
during the year 550 1,340 6,883 4 1522 1,163 1,003 2610 259 15394

The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company who
have held beneficial interests of Bestcase Hong Kong
Limited, Dragongem Development Limited, Hon Po Group
(Lobster King) Limited, Jing Hua (Allied) Limited,
Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited, Ocean
Grace Investments Limited and Speedy Fortune Limited
are namely Chan Nun Chiu, Lim Mai Tak, Grace, Cheung
To Seng, Ng Wing Po and She Hing Chiu.

The directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company who
have held beneficial interests of Twin Star Investments
Limited are namely She Hing Chiu and Cheung To Seng.

The director of certain subsidiaries of the Company who
have held beneficial interests of Hon Po Holdings Limited
is namely Cheung To Seng.
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26.

27.

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

Amounts Due from/to Related Companies and
a Shareholder (continued)

(b) The amounts due from/to related companies are
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

(c) The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest
free and is repayable after 1 July 2015.

Convertible Notes

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor"), Mr. Wang Guoju, as
guarantor for the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the
Vendor, entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in
relation to proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in the
Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments holds the entire issued
share capital of China Era which has entered into the petroleum
contract with CNPC as disclose in note 17.

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
‘Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries

(the “Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition sale share and the
First Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum
of HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HKS$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HKS0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall amount
of HKS1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an escrow
agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan consideration
payable by the Company in the sum of HKS906,299,000 was
satisfied by deducting the deposit in the sum of
HKS804,000,000 and with the balance of HKS102,299,000 to

be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

26.

27.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
ARG

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

27. Convertible Notes (Continued) 27. TR EE (&)

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HKS$1,279,000,000 convertible notes should only be released to
the Vendor upon the Company having received a written
certificate issued by the competent evaluator confirming that
the First Designated Area be evaluated on the basis of unrisked
economic evaluation within the six years period from 1 June
2009 (the “Relevant Period"). As at 31 December 2014, the
written certificate has not yet been issued and the convertible
notes have not yet been release to the Vendor.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders'
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible bonds of not
more than HKS7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HKS2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where the
convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group (other than
the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall comply
with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or
requirements imposed by the SEHK, if any.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

27. Convertible Notes (continued)

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HKS0.168 per share, provided that (i)
no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may be
exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a holder of
the convertible notes and parties acting in concert with it, taken
together, will directly or indirectly, control or be interested in
30% or more of the entire issued shares of the Company (or in
such percentage of the issued share capital of the Company as
may from time to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers as being the level for triggering a
mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of the convertible
notes shall exercise the conversion right attached to the
convertible notes held by such holders if immediately after
such conversion, the public float of the shares fall below the
minimum public float requirement stipulated under Rule 8.08
of the Listing Rules as required by the SEHK. The conversion
price of HKS0.168 per share is subject to adjustment for
consolidation, sub-division or re-classification of shares, capital
reduction, rights issues and other events which have diluting

effects on the issued share capital of the Company.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to income statement over the loan
periods. The equity component of the convertible notes,
representing the difference of the fair value of the convertible
notes and the fair value of the liabilities component, was
included in the owner's equity and denoted as convertible notes

reserves.

27.

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MRS R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

27. Convertible Notes (continued)

The movement of the principal amount, liability component and
equity component of the convertible notes are as follows:

27. IRREE @)

BT

Carrying amount

BREE

Liability Equity

component component

aEHs R

HKS$'000 HKS'000

FHT FHBT

At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 110,320 2,005,233

Interest expenses FMERAX 11,936 =
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+_A=+—H

E=Z—mE—A—H 122,256 2,005,233

Interest expenses B 13,228 =

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—ME+=_A=+—H 135,484 2,005,233

No convertible notes have been converted during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HKS1,958,670,000 as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3
January 2011.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

28. Share Capital 28. g7
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
Number Amount Number Amount
of shares of shares
RIAEE &8 D& R &8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
Authorised: oy
Ordinary shares of HKS0.05each ~ EREE0.05% T2
LBk
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—ARkt=A
=t+—H 25,000,000,000 1,250,000 25,000,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
Ordinary shares of HKS$0.05 each SRAEEBILL
TdmR
At 1 January and 31 December n—A—ARkt+=A
== 7,921,120,000 396,056  7,921,120,000 396,056
Issue of share capital (note) BAIRA (FiE) 1,584,224,000 79,211 - -
At 31 December W+TZA=+—H 9,505,344,000 475267  7,921,120,000 396,056
Note: et

29.

On 18 July 2014, 1,584,224,000 shares were issued at HKS0.101 each
to an independent third party at a total consideration of
HK$160,006,624.

Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted conditionally by the Company on 25 June 2013, the
board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
options to the directors, employees and consultants of the
Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the
Company.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'

approval in a general meeting.

29.

R-ZB-—MELA+NH  MBLE=TEER
0.10178 7L 817 1,684,224,000 &l 17 - KB R
160,006,624 BT °

B Rt E

BEARBR-_ZE—=FNA=-+HBHI
R AR B ([ 25T 81 D 150 - &
ARESEANBERAR R RENBARZ
=  EEREMBRLEREURBEAQR
ZRR e

AR

RIBZFTEIA R BERITAR T 2 RITERBK
Bz LR B FRNZEBRERETEE -
AR BRI BT Z 30% ° fE{A
HRIBIE_ERRAE — PR 2 BB AR BIR
RE L BEBRRAE -
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
ARG

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

29. Share Option Scheme (continued) 29. BIRESE (2

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HKS5 million, within 12 months period, are subject to
shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified by
the directors to each grantee which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted. According to the Scheme, there is no
provision requiring a minimum holding period before an option
may be exercised. A nominal consideration of HKS1 is payable

on acceptance on grant of an option under the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the SEHK
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of
the share options; (ii) the average SEHK closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of

the Company's shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders' meetings.

No shares were granted and exercised during the years ended
31 December 2074 and 2013.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B E—iEf = A=+ —HIFFE

30. Reserves 30. &
The Company PN
Issued Contributed Share Convertible  Accumulated
capital surplus premium  notes reserve losses Total
ARRRE
BRIRE BRRARH RADEE i 2itEER #E
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THL TR THT THET THT THT
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
GEC) (P (b)) (BE(c))
Balanceat1January 2013 ~ R=ZF—=4%
—A—HZ&% 396,056 91,349 1,598,392 2,005,233 (648,356) 3442674
Loss and total comprehensive 518 & AR
income for the year 2ENGEE = = = = (18918) (18918)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-Z—=4F
+=B=1+—H
LB 396,056 91,349 1,598,392 2,005,233 (667,274) 3,423,756
Loss and total comprehensive  E518 i A E
income for the year FRNEEE - = = = (28,159) (28,159)
Issue of share capital BITR 79,211 = 80,795 = = 160,006
Balance at 31 December 2014 R =Z—M4
+=B=1+—H
i 475,267 91,349 1,679,187 2,005,233 (695,433) 3,555,603
Notes: Bt
(@)  The contributed surplus represents the difference between the (@) EBHERABHKDIBBE_ZZ_F—-—H+t

nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange
for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the value of
the underlying assets of the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation on 17 January 2002.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company under certain circumstances. It represents the excess
of the nominal value of shares issued by the Company.

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity component
of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to convert the note
into share capital).

(b)

(©)

BASEEAR  AUARBRBARZE
BTN 31T 2 AR R R AR 2 B K Fft
BRARZIAHEEEME ZER °

RIEASHBERARAZHRE B ER
EETHERTADKTARBBRRE o D
mEREHARRDBETRMEE S

ARBREERFEEHEREESETARERRE 22
Ay (AR MERERA 2 EEE) -
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ire PSR R T et

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

31. Commitments

(@) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its staff quarters, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements with lease terms ranging from one to two
years. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

31. &

@

RERERRE
AEERETAIBBELEROR
RETEIES MAERREE M

BHOZRARENSEHSERS

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—0OF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FH&T
Within one year R—FA 2,270 4,336
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ E-_FZFRF (BIEHEME) 34 1,715
2,304 6,051
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAFRIE
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-0OF —F—=
HKS$'000 HKS'000
F#ExT T
Commitments for the oil field 8 2 B R K 5T A AR 7S
exploration and evaluation services: HRYE
— contracted for but not provided — BETRERIEL Bt 148,436 167,291
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Related and Connected Party Transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related and
connected parties are disclosed below. During the year and in
the ordinary course of business, the Group had the following
material transactions with related and connected parties which
are not members of the Group:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Company's directors as

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE

32. BBATRBERS

RARHEHEBRARNRIBEBA L 2 HEA
EITZRFERFARE R EEEEAZIS
PYREINEE - ANERE EEAMBIN M BEA T
TZRGHBEWENT - FAKRNEEER
BIEH - AREEEIFAKBEKE AR 2R
NEAEALAUNTEARRS :

TEEEAEMS
BIAEEIZERABZB S (BERAE
Aﬂé%iﬁzfﬁ%ﬁ) 1 BB 0 B s R BT

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements. 13°
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHAT
Rental expenses paid to related ENEEARESRX
companies (note (i) (BRFEE (i) 555 575
Sales of food to related companies (note (i) [AIBFE A &4 E & & (i (i) 37,105 36,567
Note: Bifat -
0) The rental expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 (i) HE_Z-HWNEFR_Z—=5+27

were paid to:

Speedy Fortune Limited and Hon Po Investment Limited of which
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company have a beneficial
interest. The rental expenses were based on the tenancy agreements
signed with the Group.

=t Eii&Zi‘E@SﬁSﬁEH% :

REARARREEREBERAT - @A
AREFHBAR L EEHEESER
HeR NRERARERET 2 AER
Bt -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

32. Related and Connected Party Transactions 33. EBEALTRBAERS (&)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Hiat : (&)
(i) The Group has the sales transactions with the following related iy BEZZT—NFEFRZT—Z=F+=F7
companies during the year ended 31 December 2074 and 2013, =+—HIEFE  AEEZBETIIBEEA

THETHERS -

2014 2013
—E—-mF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FAT
Bestcase Hong Kong Limited BEBEBERAR 4,145 408
Dragongem Development Limited EZBERERARAR 5412 7,928
Hon Po Group (Lobster King) Limited EELRE(GEBRAT)BERAR 7,703 -
Jing Hua (Allied) Limited I (BE)BRAR 6,497 8,546
Twin Star Investments Limited EEXEHRAR 3,348 5,060
Metropolis Harbour View Chinese Cuisine Limited Si2&F AR A A 5,387 8,377
Ocean Grace Investments Limited RAKREBRAR 4,613 6,248
37,105 36,567
As stated in note 26, certain directors of certain subsidiaries of AT sE 26 FTa c AN ARIETHEB AR Z
the Company have a beneficial interest in the above ETESR ERATIHA TSR o At -
companies. As a result, these companies are related ZENRBAEE ZBAEAT

companies of the Group.
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33. Litigation

(@)

In January 2014, two independent parties (the “Plaintiffs")
commenced a legal action against (a) two substantial
shareholders of the Company (the “First and Second
Defendants”) and (b) the Company, whereby the Plaintiffs
alleged that the First and Second Defendants have
agreed to transfer convertible notes of the Company in
the principal sum of HK$106,820,000 (“Disputed CN") to
the Plaintiffs, but the Company failed to recognise the
transfer and failed to issue shares in accordance with the
Plaintiffs' conversion instruction. The Plaintiffs sought for
total damages of HKS$106,820,000 and interests and
related costs.

The Company filed defense on 12 March 2014 and denied
the claims made by the Plaintiffs. The management of
the Company made an assessment that the litigation is
unlikely to result in any material impact on the financial

position of the Company.

On 16 June 2014, the Company received a writ of
summons in the High Court of Hong Kong relating to the
termination of placing agreement on 21 May 2014 with
United Simsen Securities Limited (“United Simsen").
United Simsen as the plaintiff claimed against the
Company for (a) the sum of HKS$3,010,025.60; (b)
reimbursement of costs and expenses; and c¢) indemnity
against all claims, damages, costs and expenses from
the placees, together with interest and costs. Details
about the termination of the placing agreement were
already disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
21 May 2014. The Company has settled the dispute with
United Simsen on this action and paid United Simsen a
settlement sum. Consequently, on 21 October 2014, this

action was dismissed by way of consent order.

33.

(b)

A M BmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HBE—F—mF+—A=+—HIFE

R-ZF-—OF—F MEBLS (K
EBEADE@ARAMEEERR([E
—REZWEAD RO)ARBRE
ERNF REABHE - RE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—mF+—A=+—HIFEF

33. Litigation (Continued)

©

On 11 July 2014, the Company received a writ of
summons in the High Court of Hong Kong relating to the
termination of open offer and underwriting agreement on
23 June 2014 with United Simsen. United Simsen claimed
against the Company for (a) the sum of HK$8,850,496.07;
(b) reimbursement for all reasonable legal fees,
documentation fees and other reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses in respect of the open offer under the
underwriting agreement; and (c) indemnity against all
claims, damages, costs and expenses from the sub-
underwriters under the underwriting agreement, together
with interest and costs. Details about the termination of
the open offer and the underwriting agreement were
already disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
on 23 June 2014. The Company has settled the dispute
with United Simsen on this action and paid United
Simsen a settlement sum. Consequently, on 21 October

2014, this action was dismissed by way of consent order.

34. Capital Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

To support the Group's stability and growth; and

To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.
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34. Capital Risk Management (Continued)

S5

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves of HKS475,267,000 (201 3:
HKS$396,056,000) and HKS3,069,099,000 (2013:
HKS3,111,135,000) respectively as at 31 December 2014.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend
policy. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. For
details of cash flow forecast carried out by the directors, please
refer to note 3(b) “Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption”.
Financial Risk Management

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group's business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price
risk.
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35. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management

policies and practices described below.

(@)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for the
financial assets held for trading, the refundable deposits
and the loan receivables that were further explained in
note 22, 23 and 24 respectively, the Group principal
financial assets are bank balances placed with reputable
banks. Given their high credit standing, management
does not expect any credit risk exposure for those bank
balances. For credit exposures to customers, Group
management has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Sales to restaurant customers were settled in cash or
through credit cards. For credit exposures associated
with the refundable deposits and loan receivables, Group
management had assessed the credit quality of the
debtors, taking into account their financial position, their
business developments and other factors. In addition, the
Group ensures that the amount of the loan is within the
limit set by the Group.

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HKS$133,810,000 at 31 December 2014. The directors
have carried out a detailed review of the cash flow
forecast of the Group for the eighteen months ending 30
June 2016 and other measures taken by the management
as referred to in notes 3(b) to the financial statements,
and consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the twelve months from 31 December 2074,
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35. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are within one
year as at the end of each reporting period, except for
certain other payable and convertible notes as disclosed
in notes 25 and 27 which is interest free with maturity
date over one year. The contractual undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities equal their carrying amounts
as shown on the statements of financial position as the
impact of discounting is not significant, except for
convertible notes with the principal undiscounted cash
flows amount of HKS1,958,670,000 as at 31 December
2013 and 2014, but stated at the carrying amount of
HKS$122,256,000 and HKS$135,484,000 as at 31
December 2013 and 2014 respectively as disclosed in
note 27. These zero coupon convertible notes have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3
January 2011.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
liabilities, and the financial assets are bank balances held
with financial institutions. The Group’'s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group's exposure to market risk for changes in foreign
currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain inter-
company balances in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity to which the balances relate.
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily Hong
Kong Dollar.
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35. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a 3%
weakening/strengthen of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have decrease/increase loss before
income tax by HKS$19,828,000 (2013: HKS17,300,000).
This sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as trading securities.
All of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Except for investments which
have been suspended from trading, the decisions to buy
and sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities compared to
that of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as
the Group's liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
reporting period for those trading securities which are not
suspended from trading. If equity price had been 5%
higher, the loss for the year ended 31 December 2014
would have been decreased by HKS4,000 (2013:
HKS$13,000). Had the relevant equity price been 5% lower,

there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss.
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35. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

®

Fair value of financial instruments
HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for financial instruments
that are carried at fair value by level of the following fair

value measurement hierarchy:

Level1 =  Quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 - Inputs other than quoted price included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.

Level3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's financial
assets held for trading as disclosed in note 22 are
measured at fair value, which is categorised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and measured
fair value based on Level 1 fair value measurement
hierarchy, except for suspended investment which is
measured based on Level 3 fair value measurement

hierarchy.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into/out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During 2014 and 2013, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or into or out of Level 3.
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35. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 35. MEAMERE®)

(f)  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
Reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balance for financial instruments carried at fair value

based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

®

EMIBZAFEEE)
BREBAFABRENBA (L3R
BB AFEEIRZERTARSE
MNRERZ RFEEHBHENT -

follows:
2014 2013
—E—{F —E-=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FTHER FHET
At 1 January R—H—H
(level 3 recurring fair value) (FIREEERATEE) 2,227 2,227
Total losses recognised in RBEER 2 BELARHE
profit or loss (1,136) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
(level 3 recurring fair value) (BIFEEMUERNFER) 1,091 2,227

There are no purchases or sales of level 3 financial
instruments during the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.

The fair value of financial instruments was estimated
using a market approach. The significant unobservable
input used in the fair value measurement within Level 3
was the discount to the latest market price of the security
which has been estimated at 70% (2013: discount to the
price of similar securities which has been estimated at
50%). The directors consider this appropriate to reflect
the illiquidity and certain unfavourable news of the
suspended investment. Any increase in the discount
would result in a corresponding decrease in the fair value
of the investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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36. Financial Assets and Liabilities 36. cRIEERAE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and rEESREERBEN _Z—NER=Z
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2014 and 2013 may be —=F+ZA=t+—HBERZEAENSE
categorised as follows: N
2014 2013
—E—0OF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHAT
Financial assets ETREE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEERERTIRZ
profit or loss SREE 1,171 2493
Loan and receivables (including BERRERFIE(BERE
cash and bank balances) MERITHERR) 384,191 333,142
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEK AT EZERARE
amortised cost 654,665 725,189
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LFMBHE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+—A=1—HIFE

Results 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
E4 “E-NE —T=f —T——-fF —T—% —T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FEx FTAT FAET FAT FAT

Turnover BEH 37,261 36,687 61,957 73,876 85,376
Loss before income tax BRET{S BRI E B (40,240) (48,533) (41483)  (127,164) (50,987)
Income tax credits PriStiE% 3,586 4314 5138 4,328 =
Loss before non-controlling RaETIEE Rz A B 18

interests (36,654) (44,219) (36,345)  (122,836) (50,987)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE - = = = =
Loss for the year REEZEE (36,654) (44,219) (36,345)  (122,836) (50,987)
Assets and liabilities 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
BEREE “E2-mE —E-=F ZZT-—-F ZT——F ZZT-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET TEL TAET TAET

Total assets BEHRE 4,199,837 4233272 4015268 4,048,378 958,439
Total liabilities BEEE (654,718)  (725328)  (578521)  (604.235) (52,028)
Non-controlling interests iz (753) (753) (753) (753) (753)
Attributable to owners of AARHEE AEL

the Company 3,544,366  3507,191 3435994 3443390 905,658
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